
February 17, 2022

RE: Suite PH106-B1  Unit 5 Level 24, Parking PA-054  Unit 054 Level A of 
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296

Dear Sir or Madam:

As requested, we are pleased to provide a status certificate for the above-noted unit along with 
other documents pertaining to the condominium corporation.

To ensure the highest standard of accuracy in the keeping of ownership records we encourage 
new owners to have their solicitor directly provide the corporation with a copy of page 1 of the 
Transfer Deed, which will detail all dwelling, parking and locker unit information as applicable. All 
correspondence to the Corporation is to be delivered by hand or by mail to York Region Standard 
Condominium Corporation No. 1296, c/o Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd., 7165 / 7167 
Yonge Street, Thornhill, ON  L3T 0C9/0E1 or by email to parksidetowers@Crossbridgecs.com.

In accordance with current legislation, a person, upon becoming an owner in a corporation is 
required within 30 days to give written notice to the corporation of their:

 Name
 Unit Number
 Address for Service (mailing address)

If the address for service is not in the Province of Ontario then the address for service will be that 
of the unit in the condominium corporation. 

Until and unless such notification is provided to the Corporation, its records shall remain in the 
name of the present owner as prescribed under the Condominium Act, 1998 and the new owner 
will not receive notices of any meetings and other written communication from the Corporation.

We inform you that maintenance fees on a unit are due on the first day of each month.  
Maintenance fees may be paid by pre-authorized fund transfer (PAFT).  Please complete the 
enclosed PAFT form and return to the management office at the above-noted address for service.  

If the unit is intended to serve as a rental property then please ensure that the enclosed Summary 
of Lease or Renewal is completed and returned to the management office. 

You are welcome to contact the condominium manager at (416)639-1464 with any questions.

Yours very truly,

Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.

Property Manager

Enclosures

Sam H. Pooya
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STATUS CERTIFICATE
(UNDER SUBSECTION 76 (1) OF THE CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998)

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296 (known as the “Corporation”) certifies 
that as of the date of this certificate:  

General Information Concerning the Corporation

1. Mailing address: YRSCC 1296 - Parkside Towers
c/o Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
7165 / 7167 Yonge Street
Thornhill, ON  L3T 0C9/0E1

2. Address for service: same as above

3. Property manager: Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
111 Gordon Baker Road
Suite 700
North York, ON  M2H 3R1

   
   On-Site Property Manager: Sam Pooya, (416)639-1464                                                             

4. The directors and officers of the Corporation are:

Name Position Address for Service Telephone Number
Mahdi Dadkhah Director Same Above (416)639-1464
Abdollah Behroyan President Same Above (416)639-1464
Dalina Pezeshki Secretary Same Above (416)639-1464
Sharareh Razavi Treasurer Same Above (416)639-1464
Houshang Shans Vice President Same Above (416)639-1464

Common Expenses

5. The owner of Suite PH106-B1  Unit 5 Level 24, Parking PA-054  Unit 054 Level A at 7165 / 7167 Yonge 
Street, Thornhill, ON L3T 0C9/0E1 of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296, 
registered in the Land Registry Office for the Land Titles Division of York Region (No. 65) is not in 
default in the payment of common expenses.

OR
is in default in the payment of common expenses in the amount of $ 0 .
[If applicable add:
and a certificate of lien has been registered against
(if the Corporation is any condominium corporation but a common elements
condominium corporation: the unit)

6. A payment on account for the unit for Common Expense Contribution charges of $606.24 for a total 
fee of $606.24 is due on 01 Mar 2022 for the period 01 Mar 2022 to 31 Mar 2022.  This amount includes 
the amount of any increase since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year 
as described in paragraph 10.

In addition to the above, if applicable, the unit owner is responsible for the cost of all in-suite hydro 
which is billed directly to the owner. The owner and purchaser are responsible for contacting the 
provider, Power Stream Energy Services at www.powerstreamenergyservices.com/metering and 

http://www.powerstreamenergyservices.com/metering%20and%20phone%20number%201-855-952-5280


phone number 1-855-952-5280 to change ownership details and to ensure there are no outstanding 
balances. Beware that billing is always a month behind. Any unpaid utilities are deemed to be in arrears 
and shall be collectable as common expenses against the unit.

7. The Corporation has the amount of $ 0  in prepaid common expenses for the unit.

8. There are no amounts that the Condominium Act, 1998 requires to be added to the common expenses 
payable for the unit.

Budget

9. The Corporation is presently meeting its obligations as and when they become due and is not presently 
considering any increase in the common expenses until the next fiscal period.  To this extent, the 
current budget is accurate, however, the Corporation may not accurately determine whether the budget 
will result in a surplus or a deficit at this time as the Corporation has no control over any unannounced 
increases in utility rates, labour and material costs and any other similar factors which are beyond 
normal budgetary controls.  A surplus or a deficit is undetermined at this time. 

10. Since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, the common expenses for 
the unit have not been increased. 

11. Since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, the board has not levied any 
assessments against the unit to increase the contribution to the reserve fund or the Corporation’s 
operating fund or for any other purpose.

12. The Corporation has no knowledge of any circumstances that may result in an increase in the common 
expenses for the unit(s), except:

a)         We’ve learned that our insurance premiums and/or deductibles may increase beyond 
inflation in the next fiscal year(s).  If so, this could result in an increase in common 
expenses (beyond inflation).

            b)         It appears that the COVID-19 crisis may cause the condominium corporation to incur 
expenses beyond the current budget (see Paragraph 9 in relation to any anticipated 
budget deficit or surplus).  We won’t know the precise amount of any resulting deficit (and 
any resulting increase in common expenses) until the crisis is behind us.

            c)         On November 1, 2019, amendments to the Ontario Rebate for Electricity Consumers Act, 
2016 (ORECA) came into force making the common area hydro account ineligible for the 
Ontario Electricity Rebate of 21.2% for condominiums suite-metered by Toronto Hydro.   If 
there is no legislated change, the current rates for these common area hydro accounts will 
increase by 21.2% after April 30, 2021.

           
Reserve Fund

13. The Corporation’s reserve fund amounts to $ 3,279,371.58 (unaudited) as of January 31, 2022.

14. The most recent Reserve Fund Study conducted by the Board is a Comprehensive Reserve Fund 
Study, dated March 01, 2019 and has been prepared by WSP Canada Inc..  The next reserve fund 
study will be conducted before October 1, 2022.

However the Corporation also contributes to the Shared Facilities World on Yonge Reserve Fund and 
the funds are held in the Corporation’s name.  Please refer to document as part 17 of the Status 
Certificate.  

http://www.powerstreamenergyservices.com/metering%20and%20phone%20number%201-855-952-5280


15. The board has sent to the owners a notice dated March 12, 2019 containing a summary of the reserve 
fund study, a summary of the proposed plan for future funding of the reserve fund and a statement 
indicating the areas, if any, in which the proposed plan differs from the study. The proposed plan for 
future funding was implemented October 1, 2019 and the total contribution each year to the reserve 
fund is being made as set out in the Contribution Table included in the Notice.

16. There are no plans to increase the reserve fund under a plan proposed by the board under subsection 
94 (8) of the Condominium Act, 1998, for the future funding of the reserve fund, except for the increased 
annual contributions to the reserve fund as indicated in the attached Notice of Future Funding of the 
Reserve Fund.

Legal Proceedings, Claims

17. There are no outstanding judgments against the Corporation.

18. The Corporation is not a party to any proceeding before a court of law, an arbitrator or an administrative 
tribunal.

19. The Corporation has not received a notice of or made an application under section 109 of the 
Condominium Act, 1998 to the Superior Court of Justice for an order to amend the declaration and 
description, where the court has not made the order.

20. The Corporation has no outstanding claim for payment out of the guarantee fund under the Ontario 
New Home Warranties Plan Act.

21. There is currently no order of the Superior Court of Justice in effect appointing an inspector under 
section 130 of the Condominium Act, 1998 or an administrator under section 131 of the Condominium 
Act, 1998.

Agreements with owners relating to changes to the common elements
22. The unit is not subject to any agreement under clause 98 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act, 1998 or 

section 24.6 of Ontario Regulation 48/01 (General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998 relating 
to additions, alterations or improvements made to the common elements by the unit owner.

OR
The unit is subject to one or more agreements under clause 98 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act, 
1998 or section 24.6 of Ontario Regulation 48/01 (General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998 
relating to additions, alterations or improvements made to the common elements by the unit owner.  
To the best of the Corporation’s information, knowledge and belief, the agreements have been 
complied with by the parties. (if applicable add: except ______________________ (give particulars).
(If applicable, include a copy of the agreements with this certificate and mention them in the list of 
documents forming part of this certificate.)]

Leasing of Units
23. The Corporation has not received notice under section 83 of the Condominium Act, 1998, that any unit 

was leased during the fiscal year preceding the date of this status certificate.
OR

The Corporation has received notice under section 83 of the Condominium Act, 1998, that 200 unit/s 
was/were leased during the fiscal year preceding the date of this status certificate.

Substantial changes to the common elements, assets or services

24. There are no additions, alterations or improvements to the common elements, changes in the assets 
of the Corporation or changes in a service of the Corporation that are substantial and that the board 



has proposed but has not implemented, and there are no proposed installations of an electric vehicle 
charging system to be carried out in accordance with subsection 24.3 (5) of Ontario Regulation 48/01 
(General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998 [if applicable add: except __________________  
(give a brief description and a statement of their purpose)].

Insurance

26. The corporation has secured all policies of insurance that are required under the Condominium Act, 
1998. Each unit owner is advised to carefully review the enclosed Certificate of Insurance, 
including the extent of any deductibles, and to become familiar with and to understand that each 
unit owner is responsible for insuring any contents in and improvements to their individual units. 
As well each unit owner insurance policy should also include personal third party liability 
insurance, reimbursement for living expenses outside of your unit and protection against any 
deductible charges that might accrue to the unit owner from the Condominium Corporation.  
The Corporation shall insure the units (excluding contents and improvements) with reference to 
the standard unit by-law or standard unit schedule of the Corporation and the common elements 
for full replacement cost without deduction for depreciation.

Phased condominium corporations

27-32. These clauses deal with Phased, Common Element, Vacant and Leasehold Condominium 
Corporations and do not apply to this Standard Condominium Corporation.

Attachments

33. The following documents are attached to this Status Certificate and form part of it. 
(a) a copy of the current declaration, by-laws and rules, (if applicable, add:  which include an occupancy 

standards by-law);

(b) a copy of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, its last annual audited financial 
statements and the auditor’s report on the statements;

(c) a list of all current agreements mentioned in section 111, 112 or 113 of the Condominium Act, 1998 
and all current agreements between the Corporation and another corporation or between the 
Corporation and the owner of the unit;

(d) a certificate or memorandum of insurance for each of the current insurance policies.

[if applicable add the following items:
(e) a copy of all applications made under section 109 of the Condominium Act, 1998 to amend the 

declaration or description for which the court has not made an order;

(f) a copy of the schedule that the declarant has delivered to the board setting out what constitutes a 
standard unit, if there is no by-law of the Corporation establishing what constitutes a standard unit;

(g) a copy of all applications, if any, described in clause 98 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act, 1998  or 
section 24.6 of Ontario Regulation 48/01 (General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998 that 
bind the unit;

(h) a copy of a notice dated March 12, 2019 containing a summary of the reserve fund study, a 
summary of the proposed plan for future funding of the reserve fund and a statement indicating the 
areas, if any, in which the proposed plan differs from the study;



(i) a copy of an order appointing an inspector under section 130 of the Condominium Act, 1998 or an 
administrator under section 131 of the Condominium Act, 1998;

(j) a copy of the disclosure statement that the Corporation has received from the declarant under 
subsection 147 (5) of the Condominium Act, 1998 with respect to the phase that contains the unit 
unless the declarant has completed all phases described in the disclosure statement and the 
declarant does not own any of the units in the phases except for the part of the property designed 
to control, facilitate or provide telecommunications to, from or within the property;

(k) a copy of an application by the lessor for a termination order under section 173 of the Condominium 
Act, 1998;

(l) if the leasehold interests in the units of the Corporation have been renewed and an amendment to 
the declaration has not yet been registered under subsection 174 (8) of the Condominium Act, 
1998, a copy of the provisions that apply upon renewal.]

Rights of person requesting certificate

34. The person requesting this certificate has the following rights under subsections 76 (7) and (8) of the 
Condominium Act, 1998 with respect to the agreements listed in subparagraph 33 (c) above:

1. Upon receiving a written request and reasonable notice, the Corporation shall permit a person 
who has requested a status certificate and paid the fee charged by the Corporation for the 
certificate, or an agent of the person duly authorized in writing, to examine the agreements 
listed in subparagraph  33 (c) at a reasonable time and at a reasonable location.

2. The Corporation shall, within a reasonable time, provide copies of the agreements to a person 
examining them, if the person so requests and pays a reasonable fee to compensate the 
Corporation for the labour and copying charges.

This Status Certificate is valid subject to all outstanding cheques/payments for this unit clearing the bank.

Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
Agent acting on behalf of:
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296

 *                 
   Date                                    

Authorized Signing Officer
I have the authority to bind the Corporation

 *
   Date                                    

Authorized Signing Officer
I have the authority to bind the Corporation

* Executed pursuant to the Electronic Commerce Act (Ontario)

Sam H. Pooya

Attila Benyi

February 17, 2022

February 22, 2022

                                   

                                   



























































































































































































































 

 

Management Office:  Y.R.S.C.C. 1296; 7165 Yonge St., G/F, Thornhill ON, L3T 0C9 

Tel: 416.639.1464 ∙ Fax: 416.639.1465 ∙ Email: parksidetowersmgmt@rogers.com 

Managed 

by: 
 

 

 

 

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296  

 

 

 

 

 

Schedule “A” of By-law No. 1 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

RESPECTING THE USE OF COMMON ELEMENTS 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296 

 

 

The Board of Directors of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296 (the 

Corporation) has repealed all previous Rules of the Corporation and has replaced same with the Rules 

hereinafter set out. 

 

The following rules shall be observed by the Owner, Tenant, or any Resident or Occupant of the 

units, and the terms "Owner", "Tenant", "Resident" and "Occupant" or the plurals thereof, shall be 

construed in the singular or plural as the context may require, and each such term shall be deemed to 

include the others of such terms and shall include all persons in occupancy of any unit together with 

such Owner, Tenant, Resident or Occupant and shall further include the Guests or Visitors of any such 

Owner, Tenant, Resident, Occupant, or any such person or persons. 
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1.0  DEFINITIONS  

  1. The following terms shall have the following meanings: 

a) “Corporation” means York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296; 

b) “Building” shall mean the building on the property; 

c) “Common Elements” shall mean all the property except the Units and shall mean any portion of 

the building or grounds that is exterior to a suite and not enclosed by the walls and ceiling of a 

suite.  In this respect, a balcony is defined as an exclusive use Common Element, 

d) “Unit” is the term to describe the a suite, parking spot and locker as defined in the Declaration; 

e) “Guest(s)” is a person who stays overnight, or longer, with a Resident; 

f) “Property Manager” shall mean the property management company hired by the Corporation; 

g) “Owner(s)” shall mean a person who owns a unit in the building and who may or may not reside 

in the unit; 

h) “Resident” is an Owner or tenant who ordinarily occupies a dwelling unit as a residence; 

i) “Security” shall mean the staff of the Security Company hired by the Corporation; 

j)     “Superintendent” shall refer to the superintendent of the building; 

k) “Visitor(s)” is a person who visits a Resident for a day or part of a day; 

 l)  “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Corporation 

m) “Documentation” means the Condominium Act, the Declaration, the By-Laws, and Rules of the 

Corporation 

2.  Unless otherwise specified, the terms used herein shall have ascribed to them the definitions 

contained in the Condominium Act, R.S.O. 1998, c. 19 as amended by the Protecting 

Condominium owners Act, 2015, S.O. 2015, C. 28 – Bill 106 and the Regulations made 

hereunder, and any amendments to the said Act and Regulations or any successor legislation. 

2.0  PURPOSE 

The purpose of these Rules and Regulations are: 

1. to promote the safety, security and welfare of the owners, residents, their guests, the 
property and assets of the corporation. 

2. to prevent unreasonable interference with the use and enjoyment of the common elements, 
the units and the assets of the corporation. 

3. are not intended to unduly restrict the activities of residents and their guests, but rather to 
maximize the harmonious enjoyment. 
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3.0  ENFORCEMENT 

1. These rules and regulations apply to all present and future owners who shall be subject to and 

shall comply with the provisions of the Documentation of the Corporation. 

2. In addition to all other means of enforcement available to the Corporation, attention is directed 

to Section 134 of the Act which provides that a duty imposed through the Documentation may be 

enforced by an order of the Court directing the performance of the duty. 

3. Any and all losses, costs or damages incurred by the Corporation by reason of a breach of any 
provision in the Documentation of the Corporation in force from time to time, by any 
Owner, or any person, thing or animal for whom or for which the Owner is responsible, 
shall be borne and/or paid for by such Owner and may be recovered on a solicitor and 
client basis by the Corporation against such Owner in the same manner as common 
expenses or as may be provided in the Condominium Act or any other such lawful manner. 

4.0  GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF OWNERS AND RESIDENTS 

1.  A Resident Information Form is available at the Property Management Office. All 
residents/owners are required to complete this form and return it to the Property 
Management Office and/or the Security Desk. 

 
2. Any loss, cost or damage incurred by the Corporation by reason of a breach of any rules in force 

from time to time by any Owner, Resident, Guest or Visitor, shall be borne by the Owner of such 
unit and may be recovered by the Corporation against such Owner in the same manner as 
common expenses or by way of claim at law. 

 
3. No person shall threaten, harm or harass any Resident, Director, Employee, Management Staff, 

Agent or Servant of the Corporation.  Harassment shall consist of any oral or written statement, 
or any action or conduct, which is intimidating, threatening, or violent, or which causes physical 
or psychological harm, fear, humiliation, or embarrassment, judged on a reasonable, objective 
basis.  Harassment includes any statement, action, or conduct which a person knows or 
reasonably ought to know would be unwelcome and/or offensive, including, without restriction, 
any verbal abuse, insulting comment, joke, gesture, and conduct or touching, or any action or 
behaviour that is contrary to the Ontario Human Rights Code. 

 

5.0               FEDERAL, PROVINCIAL & MUNICIPAL LAWS 

1. No one shall do or permit anything to be done in or to a unit or the Common Elements that will 

conflict with any federal, provincial or municipal laws. 

6.0               FIRE PREVENTION 

1. No one shall do or permit anything to be done in or to a unit or the Common Elements or bring 

into or keep anything, including any propane or other flammable or explosive substance, in a 

unit or in or on the Common Elements which will in any way increase the risk of fire or the rate 

of fire insurance on the building or on any personal property kept therein. 
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2. No one shall overload existing electrical circuits. The new installation of any major electrical 

apparatus is not permitted without prior written consent of the Board.  

3. No hazardous materials, chemicals or combustible materials shall be kept in or upon units, 

Common Elements or lockers. 

4. Nothing shall be stored within 25 cm (10 in.) of the concrete ceiling in any locker.  

5. No electric, charcoal or propane barbecuing is permissible in any unit or on any balcony. No 

barbecues of any type are permissible on any non-exclusive use Common Element area except 

as approved in designated areas by the Board.   

6. No open flame devices of any type or fireworks are allowed on a balcony.  

7. Natural Christmas trees, or any parts of any such trees, shall be disposed of only in designated 

areas as determined by the Management Office. 

8. No cigarette butts or any lighted material is to be thrown off a balcony. 

9. No one shall tamper with, paint or cover the in-suite alarm system.  No one, except the 

Corporation, shall attempt to repair the in-suite fire alarm system including any speakers that 

are part of that system. Any problem shall be immediately reported to the management office 

or Security. 

10. No one, except the Corporation shall tamper with, paint or cover the in-suite sprinklers. Any 

problem shall be immediately reported to the management office or Security. 

11. No one shall remove or tamper with the automatic suite door closure. 

12. Unit doors are to remain closed except for ingress or egress.  

7.0  SECURITY 

1. All incidents of unauthorized entry to the building, or any emergency concerning any elevator or 

any situation otherwise affecting the safety and security of the building and its occupants, must 

be reported immediately to Security. 

2. Any entrance to the property (door or gate) must be firmly locked and secured by the individual 

using that entrance.  Doors must not be propped open at any time and any open door, gate or 

any malfunctioning door/gate must be reported to Security. 

3. Visitors or tradesmen must not be admitted to the building without permission and/or 

supervision of a Resident, Owner or Management Office. 

4. Any accidental spills or undue untidiness must be promptly reported to the Security. 

5. Written materials may be distributed to unit doors if they are of a non-commercial nature. 

Acceptable materials include those which announce activities to foster community spirit, or 

those which inform Residents of latest developments at Parkside Towers. Anyone who wishes to 

distribute written materials must receive prior management consent and must agree to pick up 

any left at unit doors within 48 hours of the original drop date. Distribution of municipal, 

provincial and federal election material or for any purpose that is consistent with the 

Condominium Act is not subject to this Rule. 
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6. Excepting the previous paragraph, no one shall solicit or permit solicitation in the building, 

charitable or otherwise.  

8.0  PARKING, ROADS & DRIVEWAYS 

1. No Resident shall park a motor vehicle on the Common Elements, roadways or other non-

parking spot. 

2. Stopping on the front driveway is permitted only to drop off or pick up passengers. This 

driveway is a direct emergency access route for the Fire Department, Ambulances and Police. 

Vehicles must not be left unattended at any time. Persons contravening this rule may be subject 

to fines or having their vehicle towed in accordance with City by-laws. 

3. All residents must register his/her automobile including description and licence plate number 

with the management office upon taking residence in the building. 

4. No one shall park in any parking space designated as Visitors parking without a valid permit. 

5. Residents who own or rent a parking spot may only use that spot. Parking in any other parking 

space may result in a parking ticket or removal of the vehicle at the owner’s expense. 

6. The designated parking spaces shall be used for one automobile and/or up to four motorcycles 

and/or bicycles, or any combination, provided that they fit within the boundaries of the parking 

space. No storage of any goods or items shall be permitted in parking spaces. 

7. No one shall permit any gasoline, oil or other harmful substance to escape onto the surface of 

the parking spaces, driveways or Common Elements. The Residents shall be responsible for any 

spills or damages to the property.  No repairs or adjustments to motor vehicles shall be carried 

out on the Common Elements or any parking spot, roadway or other within the underground 

parking area. Other than as a temporary expedient, mats, trays or other containers may not be 

placed on the surface of the parking spaces as an alternative to repairing the cause of the escape 

of the gasoline, oil or other harmful substance. 

8. Each unit can use a maximum of three (3) overnight permits in the designated Visitor Parking 

section per calendar week. These permits are only for use of the guest of a resident. Permits 

must be clearly displayed on the dashboard of the vehicle while parked in the designated 

parking area. 

9. No motor vehicle or motorcycle which is not licensed or which is not fit for normal use or which 

is undergoing repairs shall be parked or located upon the Common Elements or any part thereof. 

10. Motor vehicles using compressed gas or propane are not permitted in the underground garage, 

for safety reasons.  

11. No person shall park a motor vehicle in contravention of these Rules in default of which such 

vehicle shall be liable to be tagged and/or towed and the vehicle's owner fined under applicable 

city by-laws. All costs and charges for the removal, care and storage of it, if any, are the 

responsibility of the vehicle owner. 

12. The Corporation may suspend any permitted parking in the event of an emergency or for non-

compliance with the provisions of this section. 
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9.0  BICYCLES, ROLLERBLADES & SCOOTERS 

1. No bicycles of any kind shall be brought into the building through the lobby area and may not be 

transported in the elevators or stored on balconies. 

2. Rollerblades may not be worn in any common area. Scooters, other than for the use of 

handicapped residents, may not be taken into common areas. 

3. Bicycles must be stored in designated bicycle storage areas or residents’ lockers only and may 

only be parked temporarily at the bicycle racks outside the building. 

4. The bicycle storage areas shall be used for the storage of bicycles and for no other purpose. 

5. Bicycle storage spaces are available from the Management Office during regular office hours for 

an annual fee plus a key deposit. 

10.0  COMMON ELEMENTS AND UNITS (SUITES)  

1. No one shall create any nuisance, disturbance, or excessive noise, or otherwise breach any 

provisions of the declaration, bylaws or rules of the Corporation. If asked by the police, Security 

or Property Management Office to cease such activity/conduct, any person shall immediately 

depart/vacate the Common Elements. Failure to do so shall be deemed to constitute a trespass, 

and such person may be subject to prosecution and potential penalties under the terms of the 

Trespass Act of Ontario. 

2. No one shall cause or permit any person or pet to damage, litter, alter or destroy any 

landscaping or any of the exterior, interior or exclusive use Common Elements. 

3. No building, structure or tent shall be erected, placed, located or maintained on any Common 

Element or exclusive use Common Element. 

4. No satellite dish or similar structure shall be erected on, or fastened to any unit, common 

element or exclusive use Common Element.  

5. Signage, advertising materials and other notices may only be posted on the community bulletin 

Boards provided by management for Residents and are not allowed on exclusive use Common 

Elements. 

6. Seasonal lights and decorations (including flags) which do not create a nuisance may be placed 

on exclusive use Common Elements but shall be removed within a reasonable time. 

7. The responsibility for any damage resulting from flooding, overflow or any water damage to any 

Common Element or adjoining units shall be borne by the Owner.  Items that have been known 

to cause water overflow include, but are not limited to, the following: garbage, cat litter, dental 

floss, sanitary pads or personal hygiene products. 

8. No awnings or shades shall be erected over and outside of the windows or balconies. 

9. Objects are not permitted to overhang balcony railings. 

10. No hanging or drying of clothes is allowed on balconies.  

11. Balconies shall not be used for storage, except for seasonal furniture. 
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12. When washing balcony floors or watering plants, Residents must avoid spilling, splashing or 

spraying water over the edge of the balcony floor or railing.  

13. Window coverings will consist of draperies, curtains or blinds only. Blankets, sheets, flags, tin 

foil, newspaper or tablecloths are not appropriate window coverings. 

14. The exterior of window coverings shall be white or off-white. 

15. Nothing shall be thrown out of the windows or doors of a unit or off any balcony. This includes 

cigarette butts. 

16. Security has the authority to ask you to lower the volume at any time if a verbal complaint has 

been made about the level of noise/music. 

17.  Residents shall ensure that they keep the volume of sound and noise making devices to a 

reasonable, quiet level between the hours of:  

 11:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. Sunday evening through Friday morning 

 11:00 p.m. Friday evening to 9:00 a.m. Saturday morning 

 11:00 p.m. Saturday evening to 9:00 a.m. Sunday morning 

18. It is the responsibility of the Resident to minimize any sound transmission through the flooring 

of their Unit to any other Unit. 

19. Water shall not be left running unless in actual use. 

20. No mats, footwear, umbrellas, or any other items may be left on the Common Elements, 

including at or near the entrances to Units. No items may be attached to the exterior of the 

entrance door to a unit other than seasonal decorations without the prior written approval of 

the Management Office. 

21. Alcoholic beverages may be consumed from time to time in Common Element areas for 

functions as designated by the Property Management Office. 

22. No one shall engage in any form of sport including, but not limited to rollerblading and 

skateboarding, which may cause damage or injury on any Common Element inside or outside the 

building which would interfere with the ordinary use of such areas. 

23. Other wheeled vehicles including, but not limited to, shopping carts, baby carriages, luggage 

carts must be brought into the building in such a manner so as not to damage door frames, 

elevators or any parts of the building.  

24. (a) No portable dishwasher or washing machine shall be connected to the sink faucets or shall be 

in any way permanently connected to the unit plumbing system. The pressure system in the 

building is not compatible with these portable machines. 

 (b) Washing machines for laundry may be used only in the laundry area of a unit and may be 

connected only to the appropriate plumbing system using stainless steel braided hoses.  Dryers 

may be used only if connected with metallic vent hoses. 

 (c) No garbage disposal devices (garburators) may be installed in sinks. 
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25. The sidewalks, driveways, walkways, passageways, stairwells, corridors and entries shall not be 

obstructed or used for any purpose other than entering and exiting from the units, parking areas 

and Common Elements. 

26. No container exceeding a capacity of 50 gallons (227.5 litres) is permitted in any Unit or on any 

balcony, including but not limited to, any tank, pool or water bed. 

11.0  PEST CONTROL 

1. No Owner or Resident shall permit an infestation of pests, insects, vermin or rodents to exist at 

any time in his or her unit or adjacent Common Elements. Owners and Residents shall 

immediately report any evidence to the Management Office. 

2. Upon receipt of written notice, each unit Owner and Resident shall permit entry to his or her 

unit for the purpose of the conducting of pest control operations, including any spraying 

program. Each unit Owner and Resident shall prepare the unit in the manner prescribed in the 

written notice and shall permit and facilitate entry into the unit by any authorized pest control 

personnel and shall co-operate in order to carry out the full intent of this rule. 

12.0  MOVING/ELEVATORS 

1. No one shall move furniture and/or furnishings into or out of the building except: 

(a) The appropriate moving elevator in each tower may be reserved for the purpose of moving 

in/out of the building from Monday to Saturday;  

(b) The elevator may only be reserved as per the times outlined in the elevator agreement and any 

change as authorized by the board;  

(c) After making the necessary arrangements through the Security and after the Resident enters 

into an elevator agreement in such form as the Board of Directors may from time to time 

determine; 

(d) After providing a refundable deposit as set by the Board to cover damages caused to the 

Common Elements, including the elevator, walls, ceilings and corridors as a result of moving 

in or out; 

(e) The elevators may not be used for the purposes of moving furniture or furnishings in or out 

of the premises without the placement of protective padding in the elevators. 

2. There are NO moves/deliveries on Sundays or holidays. 

3. Failure by a resident to adhere to the rules for the use of the elevators shall cause forfeiture of 

the deposit. 

4. No moving of any furniture and/or furnishings shall take place through the lobby. 

5. No one shall block any exit, corridor, loading dock, elevator or other portions of the Common 

Elements. 

6. When a move causes damages to the elevator, hallways, loading dock or any part of the 

Common Elements, the Resident and/or Owner shall be jointly and severally liable to the 

Corporation for the cost of cleaning and repairs over and above the amount of the Security 
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deposit. Such costs shall be assessed by the Management Office as soon as possible following 

the move and the decision of the Management Office in this regard shall be final and binding.  

7. Any accidental spills or untidiness in the elevator must be reported promptly to Security. 

8. Elevators are not be used in any manner that may endanger or inconvenience other residents. 

9. New Owners or Residents acquiring a Unit shall register or identify themselves with the 

Management Office prior to their move-in date. 

13.0  PETS 

1. Only pet cats, dogs, fish, birds or other small quiet pets shall be kept or allowed in any unit.  

2. Any resident who receives a written notice regarding a complaint regarding the behaviour of a 

pet shall correct the behaviour.  If the situation is not corrected to the satisfaction of the 

Management Office within two (2) weeks of the written notice, the resident may be required to 

remove the pet permanently from the property. 

3. The Owner of any pet shall be responsible for cleaning up immediately any area which the pet 

has soiled. 

4. A Unit Owner or Resident shall register with the Management Office each pet residing in the 

Resident’s Unit in accordance with the required particulars referred to on the Corporation’s 

resident information form. 

5. Each Unit shall be permitted to keep no more than two dogs or two cats, or one dog and one 

cat.  The maximum number of caged birds permitted is two. 

6. All dogs and cats must wear collars at all times with proper identification specifying the name 

and address of its Owner. 

7. No pet shall be allowed to roam the Common Elements.  Each pet must be under the full care, 

supervision and control by a responsible person and must always be on a leash while on the 

Common Elements, whether inside or outside the building. 

14.0  OWNERS AND TENANTS 

1. Each Condominium Unit shall be occupied and used as a private single family residence and for 

no other purpose, including the carrying on of a business or use of a Unit for any commercial, 

retail, institutional, industrial or other non-Residential uses, including hotel or other transient 

accommodation, except for the operation of a business or professional office if such business or 

professional office is not used to meet customers or clients except rarely or an occasional basis. 

2. Any lease or tenancy of any dwelling unit, including sub-leases and sub-tenancies, shall be for a 

 minimum term of six (6) months. No dwelling unit shall be occupied under a lease, sub-lease, 

 contract or license arrangement for transient, hotel, hotel-like, commercial, time-sharing, 

 hosting, or corporate purposes of any sort. No roomers or boarders are permitted. Rentals and 

 leases of less than six (6) months are not permitted without prior written consent of the board, 

 which may be withheld. 
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3. As per the Condominium Act, 1998 (Section 83.1), the Owner shall provide: 

(a) A Tenant with a copy of the Declaration, By-laws and Rules; 
(b) The Owner’s new address to the management office; 
(c) Other such information as stipulated in the Condominium Act. 
 

4. If the lease of a Unit is terminated and not renewed, the Owner shall notify the Corporation 

immediately. 

15.0  HOME RENOVATIONS 

1. The hours of work for home renovations, whether by Contractor or Owner, shall be Monday – 

Saturday 9:00 am – 5:00 pm. No work is permitted on Sundays or Statutory Holidays. 

2. Construction debris is the responsibility of the Owner/Contractor to remove from the property 

and is not to be put down the garbage chute or placed in any Condominium garbage bins. Failure 

to comply will result in costs being charged back to the Owner. 

3. Prior to commencing renovation work, the Owner/Contractor must contact the Management 

Office. Work is not to commence until approval has been received from the Board/Management 

Office. 

4. Owners/Contractors must check with the Management Office prior to commencement of 

renovations to ensure that there is no interference or interruption with other units (i.e. wiring, 

plumbing etc.). 

5. Be courteous and advise your neighbours in advance of your renovations and times of work. 

6. Any plumbing or electrical work should meet all current plumbing and/or electrical standards. 

Work must be done by licenced professionals. 

16.0  ACCESS DEVICES 

1. Owners are responsible for all access devices (fobs) with respect to their unit. Extra fobs will be 

sold only on terms as determined by the Board from time to time through the management 

office.  

2. Every resident must obtain and utilize a fob for the purpose of gaining entrance to the building. 

All residents over 12 years old must have and use a fob and be registered with management. The 

security guard will not grant access to individuals not registered. 

3. Lost, misplaced or stolen fobs must be reported immediately and they will be deleted from the 

security system. 

4. Residents are only allowed one (1) garage remote per owned parking spot at any time. 
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5. All fobs and garage remotes are the property of each owner, tenant or resident. Management 

will not replace any non-working fob or remote. There are no refunds on any purchased fobs or 

garage remotes. 

6. Any person may have their presence in the building challenged by security. 

17.0  KEYS 

1. All residential door locks must be on the Mul-T-Lock master key system. 

2. No lock on any entry door shall be changed and no new lock shall be added to any part of the 

unit or Common Elements. 

3. No one may change or re-key the lock on his/her unit entry door without informing and 

obtaining permission from management. 

18.0  LOCKERS 

1. Each Resident using a locker is responsible to maintain adequate insurance on all contents of the 

locker. The Corporation assumes no responsibility for the contents of any locker. 

2. Lockers shall be kept locked at all times except when an Owner is present and using same. 

19.0  REAL ESTATE AGENTS AND SALE OF UNITS 

1. When an Owner lists a unit for sale, the Owner shall notify management who will advise Security 

to allow agents access to the building after presenting appropriate identification. 

2. No real estate signs are permitted on the property. 

3. No open houses are permitted. 

4. Lock boxes shall be installed only in the stairwells. Lockboxes should be identifiable to the agent. 

Lockboxes must be removed once the property sells. Any lock boxes installed in any other 

location shall be considered abandoned and will be removed. 

20.0  GARBAGE ROOMS AND DISPOSAL CHUTES 

1. No debris, refuse or garbage shall be placed or left in or upon the Common Elements (including 

those of which the Owner has the exclusive use) except in areas designated for garbage 

collection and recycling. 

2. Nothing shall be placed in the garbage chute that may result in the blockage of such chute. 

3. All debris, refuse and garbage, except the materials hereinafter mentioned, shall be placed in 

the garbage chute in the garbage room located on each floor except: 

(a) Any packing crates or other large items shall be flattened and taken to the P1 level near 

the Compactor Room. 

 (b) Flammable or hazardous liquids/chemicals or materials cannot be left in the recycling 

room or put down the garbage chute.  These items must be disposed of safely and in accordance 

with applicable laws, procedures and disposal methods (i.e. returning to the vendor or similar 

disposal)    
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4. Garbage shall be securely wrapped and tied in such manner that same shall not burst on impact 

with the garbage compactor on the first floor. Kitty litter must be double bagged. 

5. Disposal of used furniture, appliances and other bulky items are the responsibility of the Owner. 

They are not to be left in any of the indoor or outdoor garbage areas. Management may charge 

residents for disposal of such items. 

21.0  RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 

                 1.       General 

1. The Board will, from time to time, as required establish policy to determine the maximum 

number of concurrent users of any amenity and/or the maximum number of guests who can use 

the amenities.  As well, the Board will, from time to time, set the hours for the amenities as well 

as booking procedures and rental rates for such amenities as the Party Room, Library, Billiard 

Room and Card Room. 

2. The Board has the right to temporarily suspend privileges for offensive, disturbing or dangerous 

behaviour in any of the amenities. This may also include the forfeiture of any deposit. 

3. Any Visitor or Guest may only use the Pool and Whirlpool Spa as long as they are accompanied 

by a Resident at all times.  The Resident is responsible for the behaviour of his/her Visitors 

and/or Guests. 

4. Any person under the age of 18 must be supervised/accompanied by an adult. 

5. Users of any amenity must follow all posted rules/regulations. All recreation facilities are used at 

the Owners’/residents’ risk. Any resident who violates the Rules may lose the privilege to use 

and enjoy the recreational facilities as well as forfeit any deposits made for reserving the 

amenities. 

6. The room and equipment/furnishings contained therein shall be used only for the purpose for 

which they were intended.  

7. The Gym, Pool, Card Room, Library, and Billiard Room are available from 6am until 11pm, 7 days 

per week. 

8. Amenities are for personal use only and are not to be used for commercial purposes. No personal 

trainers are allowed. Swim coaches or instructors shall not use the facilities to bring in non-residents, nor 

may a resident bring in an instructor or coach. 

               2.        Swimming Pool/Spa 

1. Residents are not allowed to use the emergency phone for personal calls; the telephone is for 

use in case of emergency only. 

2. Bathing caps or hair ties must be worn if hair is shoulder length or longer. 

3. No fluids shall be poured onto the heating unit or sauna rocks or onto the thermostat sensor. 

4. No person under twelve (12) years of age may use the whirlpool/spa due to health reasons. 

 

5. All guests MUST be accompanied by host Resident at all times. 
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6. Bathers must not prop open doors from the pool to the patio as it creates a breach of security. 

 

7. Appropriate covering (robes or tops) and footwear must be worn while travelling to and from 

the pool area (stairwells, elevators, corridors and all common areas). 

 

8. Swimming attire must be worn in and around the above areas. Street clothes or street shoes are 

NOT permitted. 

 

9. Unseemly conduct or actions, loud noises of any kind, radios, unnecessary splashing, balls, 

floating objects, scuba equipment, flippers and toys of any kind are not permitted in or around 

the pool area. 

 

10. A maximum of twenty (20) people are allowed in the Pool at any time. 

 

11. The Life Safety equipment including backboard, rings, and hooks are not to be played with at any 

time. 

 

12. Food or beverage consumption (except for water in plastic containers) is not permitted in the 

above areas. No glass containers are permitted. 

 

13. Pets are NOT permitted. 

 

14. Persons with infections or contagious health conditions are not permitted to use the above 

areas. 

 

15. A shower with soap must be taken prior to entering the pool or whirlpool. 

 

16. The saunas are DRY saunas. No liquids shall be poured directly on the heating elements. 

 

17. Security will remove any persons who violate the Rules and Regulations or whose behavior or 

activities are considered inappropriate. 

 

3.     Gym 

1. Rules and Regulations are posted in the Gym. 

2. Drinks in glass containers and food are not allowed. 

3. Appropriate exercise attire and gym shoes or other shoes with non-marking soles must be worn 

at all times. 

4. No personal trainers allowed. No guests. No non-resident owners. 

4.      Library 

1. The Library must be booked through security. 
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2. Please be considerate, this is a quiet room for study or reading. 

5.       Card Room  

1. The Card Room must be booked through security. 

2. Please be considerate, this is a quiet room for study or reading. 

6.       Party Room  

1. Residents must make a reservation for the Party Room by completing the proper forms and 

making deposit/payment in the Management Office. The deposit will be refundable upon 

inspection of the room after the event. 

2. Host shall be PRESENT at the event at all times. 

3. No conferences, sales parties or other commercial-type gathering is permitted. 

4. The Party Room is available from 11am until 11pm for rental.  

5. SMOKING IS NOT PERMITTED IN ANY COMMON AREA (including the 3rd floor patio). 

6. Food and drink must be consumed only in the room being used. 

7. The Host is responsible to preserve reasonable order, behaviour, and decorum and to enforce 

the “no smoking” regulation. The Host will be held responsible for any damage or loss. 

8. Under no circumstances are the corridors to be used for any purpose other than to allow access 

to and from the Party Room. Congregating in the corridors is not permitted.  

9. No admission fees may be charged. 

10. No pets are allowed in the Party Room or on the 3rd floor patio (other than service animals). 

11. In accordance with the municipal noise by-law, soft music is permissible to the hour of 11:00 

p.m.  Thereafter, all noise/music must stop so those occupants of suites in the vicinity of the 

Party Room are not disturbed.  If this requirement is not met, appropriate action will be taken 

and the full amount of the Security Deposit will be forfeited.  The party room must be cleared no 

later than 12:00 a.m. (MIDNIGHT), this includes clean up. 

12. All personal belongings and decorations, including all objects not belonging to the corporation, 

must be removed prior to the end of the function. The Host is solely responsible to gather up of 

all refuse left by the guests anywhere in the Party Room,  washrooms, and the grounds, and any 

other property of and will deposit refuse in the appropriate containers or garbage bags, as 

advised by Management.  

13. Only “Scotch” and “Magic Tape” brand cellophane tape may be used on walls as use and 

removal of other brands of tape may damage the paint or wallpaper. All tape and decorations 

must be removed.  

14. Damage to the furnishings and/or fixtures and/or theft or loss of corporation property is the 

responsibility of the Host and the Host will be charged for any additional costs of replacement or 

repairs not covered by the Security Deposit. 
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15. Host will supply a guest list to Security no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the Event.  

Persons not named on the guest list will not be permitted entry to the building. 

16. Exits must be kept free of obstructions at all times. 

17. In respect of the Event, the corporation, its officers, directors and the Management are not 

responsible for loss or damage to any personal property, or for personal injury to residents or 

guests, however caused, including without limitation, loss or damage or personal injury resulting 

from consumption of alcohol during or after the Event. 

18. The maximum occupant load, which has been set in accordance with the Ontario Fire Code, is 60 

persons. 

19. Guests may park their cars in Visitor Parking on P1, P2 and P3 levels. Parking in the driveways is 

NOT permitted.  Fire Route signs must be obeyed and in case of insufficient parking at the 

visitors' parking lots, the corporation is not responsible for providing additional parking. Illegally 

parked cars may be ticketed or towed at the owner’s expense. 

20. Caution must be exercised when guests of the party room exit the room via the 3rd floor patio 

area. The host must insist that all guests are aware that residents of the building whose suites 

face the 3rd floor patio area should not have their privacy or enjoyment of quiet disturbed by the 

party. 

21. The Party Room does not have washrooms. The host will allow his guests the use of his/her fob 

to open the washrooms for his/her guests. The washroom doors must not be held open. 

         7. Guest Suite  

1. Residents must make a reservation for the Guest Suite by completing the proper forms and 

making deposit/payment in the Management Office. The deposit will be refundable upon 

inspection of the room after departure. 

2. A maximum of Two (2) persons are allowed to be present in the suite. 

3. The Guest Suite can only be rented by a resident of the Corporation, and must be 18 years of age 

and older. Non-resident owners are not allowed to book the Guest Suite. 

4. The Corporation is not responsible for any damage or loss of personal property. 

5. The Guest Room check-in time is 2:00 p.m. on the date of arrival. The guest must vacate the 

room by 11:00 a.m. on the day of departure. Failure to do so may result in a charge for an 

additional day. Residents can book the Guest Suite for up to 15 consecutive days.   

6. Reservations may be cancelled no later than 5 days prior to the reserved day. 

7. The use and occupation of the Guest Suite are only for the purpose of accommodating guests or 

members of the family of the above-mentioned resident of the Corporation. 
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8. In the event that the Corporation is required to perform cleaning in addition to vacuuming, 

dusting, cleaning of counters and washing of laundry, the cost of the additional cleaning will be 

passed onto the resident host. 

9. It is understood and agreed that the guests of the undersigned will be subject to the Declaration, 

By-laws and Rules of the Corporation, Municipal, Provincial and Federal Laws. 

10. The undersigned shall ensure that anyone using the Guest Suite must refrain from behaving in a 

manner that disturbs other residents. 

11. This is a smoke-free building. Smoking is prohibited in the Guest Suite and on the common 

elements of the Corporation.  

12. Pets are not permitted within the Guest Suite (except for service animals). 

13. The Guest Suite must be left in the condition it is found.  Please turn off all lights and keep the 

door locked when vacating the suite.  Water is to run only when in use. 

14. Two (2) keys and two (2) access fobs will be provided. Loss of the Guest Suite Key and access fob 

will result in forfeiture in the amount of $250.00 from the security deposit.  

15. Obtain Visitor’s Daytime/Overnight Parking Permits from the Concierge Desk.  Permits MUST BE 

properly displayed on the dashboard of your vehicle. 

16. Management reserves the right to terminate the agreement upon failure of the guest or guests 

to comply with the terms and conditions of the agreement or failure to obey the Corporation 

Rules.  Forfeiture of the security deposit and suspension of guest suite privileges may result.  

22.0           BULLETIN BOARDS 

1. The Management Office will use its discretion as to what is deemed appropriate. 

23.00           COMPLAINTS 

1.   Complaints with respect to nuisance, safety and security issues that require immediate attention 

should be reported to Security. 

2. General complaints that do not require immediate attention shall be communicated in writing or 

by email to the Management Office.   

24.0  SEVERANCE 

1. Where any rule or part of any rule is found to be invalid or unenforceable then the remainder of 

these rules shall remain in full force and effect. 

 25.0  HEADINGS 

1. The headings in these rules are for convenience of reference only and do not form any part 

hereof and in no manner modify, interpret or construe the rules. 

 













































































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 EASEMENT AND COST SHARING MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 

 

 

 BETWEEN: 

 

 

 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1247 

- and - 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1271 

- and - 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1279 

- and - 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1285 

- and - 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296 

 

 OF THE FIRST PART 

 

 

 

 AND: 

 

 

 

 

 BROOKFIELD CONDOMINIUM SERVICES LTD. 

 

 OF THE SECOND PART 



EASEMENT AND COST SHARING MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made the         th day of August, 2016 
 
BETWEEN: 
 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1247 
a condominium corporation created pursuant to the Condominium Act by 
registration of a declaration and description in the Land Registry Office for 
the Land Titles Division of York Region. 
 

- and - 
 
YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1271 
a condominium corporation created pursuant to the Condominium Act by 
registration of a declaration and description in the Land Registry Office for 
the Land Titles Division of York Region. 
 

- and - 
 
YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1279 
a condominium corporations created pursuant to the Condominium Act by 
registration of a declaration and description in the Land Registry Office for 
the Land Titles Division of York Region. 
  

- and – 
 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1285 
a condominium corporation created pursuant to the Condominium Act by 
registration of a declaration and description in the Land Registry Office for 
the Land Titles Division of York Region. 
 

- and - 
 
YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296 
a condominium corporation created pursuant to the Condominium Act by 
registration of a declaration and description in the Land Registry Office for 
the Land Titles Division of York Region. 
 

OF THE FIRST PART 
 
BROOKFIELD CONDOMINIUM SERVICES LTD. 
(herein called the "Manager") 

 OF THE SECOND PART 
 

 
 In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto hereby agree 
as follows: 
 

WHEREAS YRSCC 1247, YRSCC 1271, YRSCC 1279, YRSCC 1285 and YRSCC 1296 
(collectively the "Corporations") are condominium corporations in respect of the units and their 
appurtenant common interests which together comprise the property contained in their  respective 
Condominium Plans, and which consist of those lands and premises situate in the City of Markham; 
 

AND WHEREAS the Corporations have entered into a Easement and Cost Sharing 
Agreement respecting the mutual use, management, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement and 
cost sharing of certain Common Facilities and the provision of services to those Common Facilities 
(herein called the "Common Facilities") as set out in a Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement dated 
February 14, 2014 (herein called the "Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement");  
 

AND WHEREAS the Corporations desire the Manager to manage the affairs of the Common 
Facilities and the assets of the Corporations contained on the Common Facilities and the Manager 
desires to do so in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; 

 
NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the mutual 

covenants and agreements herein contained and other valuable consideration, the Corporations do 
hereby appoint the Manager and the Manager does hereby accept appointment as the exclusive 
managing agent (subject to overall control of the Corporations and to the specific provisions hereof) 
for the Common Facilities of the Corporations and further the Corporations and the Manager agree 
on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth: 

 



 - 2 - 

 

I. NOMENCLATURE  
  

 Unless a contrary intent is expressed in this Agreement, the terms used herein shall have 

ascribed to them the definitions contained in the Condominium Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, C.19 

and the regulations made hereunder (hereinafter called "the Act").  The terms used herein 

shall have ascribed to them the definitions contained in the Act and/or as contained in the 

Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement.  Any reference to the Declaration, the By-laws, the 

Rules or the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement is a reference to the applicable 

document of the applicable Corporation and any reference to any such document or to the 

Act shall be deemed to include, at any given time, reference to all amendments thereto and 

substitutions therefore up to that time. Headings are for convenience only and shall not 

affect the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 

II. TERM  
 

 The term of this Agreement shall extend from the    day of    , 20__ until the      day of    , 

20__, and thereafter shall continue in full force and effect from year to year unless 

terminated in accordance with Article XIV hereof.  

  

III. ROLE OF MANAGEMENT  
 

 The Manager fully accepts that its function is to manage the Common Facilities on behalf of 

the Corporations in a faithful, diligent and honest manner, and subject to the direction of the 

Corporations, such direction to be provided by those representatives of the Corporations 

comprising the "the Committees" as is contemplated in the Easement and Cost Sharing  

Agreement and accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established between itself, 

the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 

Glycol Heating System Committees  by virtue of entering into this Agreement.  

 

 With respect to commitments binding upon the Corporations, the Manager is an independent 

contractor, except as that relationship may be changed to that of an agent pursuant to a valid 

resolution of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System 

and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees or under the express terms and conditions of 

this Agreement, but otherwise not until the Manager has received evidence in writing of 

such change in its legal relationship.  All contracts of the Corporations shall be executed by 

authorized signing officers of the Corporations. 

  

 The Manager agrees to furnish efficient business administration and supervision and to 

perform its responsibilities, including administrative, f inancial and advisory, in the best 

manner, consistent with effective management techniques and in the most expeditious and 

economical manner consistent with the best interests of the Corporations.  The Manager 

acknowledges that it is familiar with the terms of the Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement 

and with any rules for the Common Facilities as are now in force (the "Rules").  The 

Corporation shall deliver to the Manager copies of all Rules made by the Corporations in 

relation to the Common Facilities therein. 

 

The Manager shall conduct its duties consistent with the requirements of the Act, the 

Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement and any rules to the Common Facilities with Federal, 

Provincial and Municipal laws and regulations as they pertain to the operation of the 

Common Facilities. 

 

IV. SPECIFIC DUTIES OF THE MANAGER  
 

 The Manager shall perform the following specific duties, subject to the direction of the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 

Glycol Heating System Committees: 

 

 (a) Corporations Funds  

    

Collect and receive all monies payable by the Corporations in respect of the 

Common Facilities and pursuant to the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement and 

deposit the same forthwith in a separate bank account in the name of the 

Corporations with a Canadian Chartered Bank subject to the overall control of the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees with signing authority to be as directed 

by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System 

and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees from time to time.  All such monies 

shall thereafter be administered by the Manager and used to:  
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   (i) pay for insurance coverage and any appraisals in connection therewith 

required for the Common Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the 

Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement, if applicable, or as directed by the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System 

and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees; 

 

  (ii) payments of all accounts properly incurred with regard to the Common 

Facilities;   

 

  (iii) repair and maintain, or cause to be so repaired and maintained, the Common 

Facilities and all assets therein, without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, such repair and maintenance shall include the keeping of the 

Common Facilities in a neat, clean and safe condition, maintaining such staff 

as may be required at all times to promptly and efficiently carry out any of 

the foregoing.  

 

(b) Maintenance and Repair of Common Facilities  

 

  Arrange, subject to Article XI hereof, for the effective and economical operation, 

maintenance and repair of the Common Facilities in accordance with the Easement 

and Cost Sharing  Agreement or as directed by the Shared Facilities, the Project 

Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 

 

  (i) comply with the requirements and regulations of Federal, Provincial and 

Municipal Authorities having jurisdiction which affect the Common 

Facilities and of which the Manager has been notified, including where 

applicable, litter removal, waste disposal, snow and ice removal, landscaping 

and grounds maintenance, fire hydrant servicing, exterior and interior 

painting, alterations and any supervision and maintenance necessary in 

connection with the Common Facilities; 

 

  (ii) maintain and repair, or cause to be maintained and repaired, those parts of 

the Common Facilities which require maintenance and repair in accordance 

with the Act and the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement; 

 

  (iii) carry out the foregoing duties by means of employees of the Manager or the 

Corporations and/or independent contractors, in each instance, as may be 

more effective or economical for the Corporations; and 

 

  (iv) maintain, on behalf of and at the expense of the Corporations, such staff as 

may be required at all times to carry on, promptly and efficiently the 

foregoing duties and any requirements and instructions of the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees. 

 

 (c) Enforcement  

 

   Take appropriate action within its powers (short of legal proceedings) to enforce the 

Act, the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement and the Rules in accordance with 

standing instructions obtained by the Manager from the Shared Facilities, the 

Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees and, when directed to do so by the Shared Facilities, the Project 

Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees, initiate at the expense of the Corporations, legal enforcement 

proceedings through the Corporations' solicitor. 

 

 (d) Rule Advisement  

 

  Advise and consult with the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees with respect 

to any further Rules which in the opinion of the Manager ought to be established to 

further the harmonious and satisfactory operation of the Common Facilities and the 

Corporations for the common benefit of the Owners. 
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 (e) Communication to the Owners  

 

   Communicate to the Owners and/or residents, in accordance with the directions of 

the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, any announcement and the text and 

import of any new Rule, or any amendment to a Declaration or any By-law or Rule 

which affects the Common Facilities. 

 

 (f) Insurance and Claims  

 

   (i) Obtain for submission to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees a minimum of three quotations by the Shared Facilities, the 

Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committee’s selected broker for all insurance policies for 

the Common Facilities that are required or are due to expire; make 

arrangements to ensure that such policies of insurance are properly placed 

without lapse in coverage; and arrange for any appraisal in connection 

therewith which may be required by the Act, Declaration or any of the 

Corporations or the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees; 

 

  (ii) unless the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees has assumed the 

responsibility of deciding the details of the Common Facilities'' insurance 

coverage, ensure that such coverage conforms with the requirements of the 

Act, the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement and the declarations of any 

of the Corporations; 

 

  (iii) take prompt action to deal with any occurrence of personal injury (including 

death) or property damage of which the Manager or its on-site employees are 

made aware and which may result in: 

 

   (1) any claim by the Corporations under any of its insurance policies; 

   (2) any claim by the Corporations against an owner for damage resulting 

from the owner's default in the performance of an obligation to 

maintain and repair; or 

   (3) any other claim by or against the Corporations; 

    (such action shall include, without limitation, taking steps appropriate 

in the circumstances to end the cause of the injury or damage and 

locating and preserving the evidence of the cause of the occurrence);  

 

 (iv) monitor and report to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, or if 

prompt action is required, to an appropriate officer of the Corporations, 

developments in the processing of insurance or other claims by or against the 

Corporations, and see that the rights of the Corporations in respect of such 

claims are protected, including the filing of a notice of claim but excluding 

the adjusting of any loss. 

 

 (g) Inadequate Performance by Contractors  

 

Use reasonable diligence, by direct inspection or giving direction to the 

Superintendent and or Maintenance Supervisor, if any, to ensure that contracts and 

agreements between the Corporations and any supplier of materials, goods and/or 

services are performed in accordance with their terms; inform the Shared Facilities, 

the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees and hold back full payment to the contractor in the event 

performance is considered by the Manager to be inadequate or contrary to the agreed 

terms; and take advantage of all trade discounts by prompt payment of trade invoices 

where services are properly performed and/or materials provided in accordance with 

the contract. 
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 (h) Construction Liens  

 

   Retain or cause to be retained holdbacks required by the Construction Lien Act, and 

use its best efforts to ensure that no claim or lien shall be filed against the title to the  

Corporations or Common Facilities of the Corporations in respect of any work 

which may be carried out on behalf of the Corporations or the Shared Facilities, the 

Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees and, if a claim or lien shall be filed in respect of such work, 

inform the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees and forthwith take all 

necessary steps to have the same removed and discharged. 

  

 (i) Employees of the Corporations 

 

  Save and except for those employees described in Paragraph IV (j) whose wages and 

employment expenses shall be borne by the Manager, the Manager shall :    

 

  (i) on the basis of budget allocation and job description approved by the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees and observance of applicable 

legal requirements, advertise for, recruit, interview, investigate, evaluate and 

hire at the expense of Corporations qualified and competent applicants for 

on-site employment required for the efficient operation and maintenance of 

the Common Facilities and the physical assets of the Corporations, including, 

without limitation, administration, supervision, security, repair and cleaning 

unless such functions have been contracted with independent contractors; 

 

  (ii) in the name of the Corporations, hire as employees of the Corporations such 

of these applicants as are approved, with full authority to dismiss them, subject 

to prior approval with the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees ("Employees"); instruct and train such employees (including 

where appropriate, technical instruction in the operation and maintenance of 

equipment on the Common Facilities); and monitor and supervise the 

performance of such employees and ensure the proper carrying out of their 

duties;  

 

  (iii) arrange for payment by the Corporations, as part of its operating expenses, the 

wages salaries, benefits and all other employment costs of the Employees, 

including, without limitation, unemployment insurance, Workers' Compensation, 

Employer's Health Tax and Canada Pension Plan contributions and other 

employment costs and benefits as herein provided and the Corporations 

hereby acknowledges its liability in respect of such payments; 

  

(iv) at the option of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, 

provide to the Employees the employment benefits as are provided by the 

Manager for other Condominium Corporations' employees and bill the 

Corporations for the cost of such benefits and any applicable taxes;  

 

  (v) indemnify the Corporations for any claim for additional compensation, 

damages and/or other payments that may be made against the Corporations by 

the Property Manager and Site Administrator, upon the termination of 

employment of such persons or otherwise, the Manager hereby acknowledges 

that it, and not the Corporations, shall bear any liability arising from such 

claim and that this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement; 

 

  (vi) maintain proper payroll records with respect to all Employees; make payroll 

reports and returns required by law; and remit promptly to the proper 

authorities all deductions and payments for income tax, unemployment 

insurance, hospitalization, medical and other group coverage, Canada 

Pension Plan, Workplace Safety & Insurance Act, Employers ' Health Tax, 

and any other deductions or payments which, from time to time, may be 

applicable to any such persons and/or their employer. 
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 (j) Employees of the Manager 

 

  The Manager shall comply with the following terms and conditions with respect to  

the employees of the Manager: 

 

(i) Supply at its own expense the services of a Property Manager. The Property 

Manager herein shall be the same personnel as is in the role in respect of the 

Manager’s management of YRSCC 1247 and YRSCC 1285.. 

 

 (k) Materials, Equipment and Supplies  

 

   Subject to Article XI hereof, purchase on behalf of the Corporations such 

equipment, tools appliances, materials and supplies as are necessary for the proper 

operation and maintenance of the Common Facilities; maintain a current list of all 

inventory, equipment and chattels of the Common Facilities as part of its records; 

and, in any such purchase or in any contract for services effected on behalf of the  

Corporations, ensure that the Corporations are given the benefit of any volume or 

other price or service advantage which the Manager has obtained from the supplier.  

 

(l) Occurrence Report and Preventative Maintenance  

 

   (i) Submit to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees an occurrence 

report in respect of any significant accident, emergency, break-down or other 

situation or occurrence which in the opinion of the Manager ought to be 

brought to the attention of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees; 

and follow up the occurrence so reported by informing the Shared Facilities, 

the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees of the disposition of such occurrence or as the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees may require; 

 

  (ii) prepare, amend from time to time as required by circumstances, and, in each 

case, submit to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees for 

approval a detailed schedule of the work to be performed by each person that 

the Corporations employs to work at the Common Facilities; assign to each 

such person on a regular basis the work contemplated by the work schedule 

and provide any needed directions; and provide such supervision of such 

work as may be necessary; cause the Property Manager to conduct each 

month a complete walk through inspection of the common elements for the 

purpose of identifying items which presently require or in the near future 

will require maintenance or repair; make arrangements for any corrective 

action; if required to do so by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking 

Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees, prepare and submit to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking 

Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees the monthly written inspection report on items noted in the 

Property Manager's inspections; prepare a checklist setting out the status of 

maintenance or repair work in progress; and maintain a record of 

contraventions of the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement and any Rules 

by Owners, residents and others which have come to the attention of the 

Property Manager and the steps taken to correct the situation; 

 

(iii) except with respect to equipment the preventative maintenance of which is 

carried out by a third party pursuant to a contract with the Corporations, 

prepare a preventative maintenance program for each major piece of 

equipment located on the Common Facilities; submit such program to the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees for approval; make such program 

available for inspection by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees 

or its representative at all reasonable times, maintain with respect to each such 

piece of equipment a log book recording maintenance, repairs and related 

costs; and maintain all available working drawings, as built blueprints, 

maintenance and operating manuals for mechanical and electrical systems on 

the Common Facilities that have been delivered to the Manager. 
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 (m) Information and Emergency Situation  

 

  (i) Receive communications from Owners, residents, mortgagees, Government 

agencies and other interested parties to the Common Facilities, which 

communications, when action is required by the Manager or the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, shall be requested to be in 

writing except in case of emergency; to the extent that the subject matter of 

any such communication is within the scope of the responsibilities and 

duties of the Manager under this Agreement, deal with and dispose, or co-

ordinate the disposition, of such matter, provided, however, that any matter 

involving a policy decision or an interpretation of the Easement and Cost 

Sharing  Agreement or Rules shall be referred to the Shared Facilities, the 

Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees; and, refer to the Shared Facilities, the Project 

Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees any communications other than those which the 

Manager is required to receive and deal with; 

 

  (ii) keep the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees advised of the 

current telephone number or numbers at which an agent or employee of the 

Manager may be reached, at any time during normal business hours in 

respect of any infraction of the Reciprocal  Agreement or Rules at any time 

during the day or night, in respect of any emergency involving any part of 

the Common Facilities or any assets of the Corporations; make all 

arrangements to deal promptly with such infractions and immediately with 

any such emergency arising in connection with the maintenance and 

operation of the Common Facilities and assets of the Corporations on the 

Common Facilities;  deal in the first instance with minor emergencies and 

infractions and forthwith report to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking 

Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees any major emergency or persistent, flagrant or serious violation 

of the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement or Rules; it being understood 

that, if the Corporations inform the Manager of an occurrence which the 

Corporations consider to be an emergency of a major nature, the Manager 

shall take immediate steps to deal with such occurrence to the extent 

practicable, whether or not the Manager considers it to be correctly 

characterized as being of a major nature.   

 

 (n) Notice of Meetings  

   At the request of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, schedule, arrange 

facilities and prepare all Notices and accompanying materials for all meetings of the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees and deliver to each member of the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees within the time(s) prescribed under the 

Act and the By-laws such notices and other information as are required in 

connection with the holding of such meetings; and at the expense of the 

Corporations, copy, distribute or post all notices, other information and other 

announcements to Owners or residents and distribute or post them in adequate time 

prior to the applicable event; announcement of work to be performed in the Common 

Facilities, and cause an authorized representative of the Manager to attend all 

meetings of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees unless otherwise directed by 

the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees. 
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(o) Books and Records of the Corporations  

   Keep the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System 

and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees books of account and retain full and 

proper records regarding all financial transactions involved in the management of 

the Common Facilities; furnish to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees within 

eleven (11) working days following the end of each month financial statements 

summarizing the transactions made during such month as more particularly 

described in paragraph (p) below; (the Manager hereby acknowledges that such 

books and records are the property of the Corporations). 

 

(p) Annual Budget  

   Prepare and present to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees for its 

approval at least two (2) months before the commencement of each fiscal year an 

estimated budget in writing for the following year in keeping with the budget 

guidelines previously adopted by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees. 

 

Upon request of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, or whenever in the 

opinion of the Manager any change from the expenditures forecast in the current 

budget makes it desirable to do so, the Manager will submit to the Shared Facilities, 

the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees a supplementary budget covering the expenses of the operation 

of the Common Facilities and all assets therein contained, for the then remaining 

portion of the budget period.  The Manager will at all times hold itself available for 

consultation with the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees for the purpose of 

establishing or revising the total of the contributions to be paid by the Corporations.  

 

  (q) Financial Reporting  

   (i) Provide the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees with monthly 

and year-to-date itemized unaudited financial statements showing:  

 

    (1) dollar amount of expenses by category on an accrual basis, as 

compared with budgeted expenses; 

   (2) particulars of accounts, term deposits, certificates and any other 

information respecting investment income and other assets and 

liabilities of the Corporations in the Common Facilities  in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles as at the date of the 

financial statement;    

   (3) particulars of significant variations from budget;  

   (4) an income and expense statement; and 

   (5) a balance sheet. 

 

  (ii) Prepare all accounting and financial reporting which is required under the 

terms of this Agreement to be provided by the Manager to the Corporations 

in accordance with the reasonable requests of the Shared Facilities, the 

Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees and/or of the Corporation's auditors (if 

applicable) as to format and furnish the same within the reasonable time 

frame prescribed by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees or (if 

applicable) the Corporation's auditors; 

 

  (iii) Provide the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees on a monthly 

basis with a copy of the following:  

 

    (1)   A general bank statement summary; 

   (2) A bank reconciliation for the General Account;  

   (3) A detailed general ledger analysis. 
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(r) Manager's Report and Access to Records  

 

   (i) Present to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees at each 

regularly scheduled Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees  

meeting a written Manager's Report, to serve as a formal form of 

communication from the Manager to the Shared Facilities, the Project 

Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees, which Manager's Report shall reflect, without limitation 

the directives of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees  to the 

Manager and show the actions of the Manager with respect to these 

directives of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating 

Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees;  

  

  (ii) make available, all books and records pertaining to the Common Facilities, at 

reasonable times, and upon reasonable notice, whenever requested, to the 

Corporations, its auditors, any officer of the Corporations, any representative 

of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees duly authorized in 

writing, and any Owner or his agent duly authorized in writing. 

   

 (s)   Crime Insurance - of the Manager 

 

   Arrange, obtain and maintain a Crime Insurance coverage, covering the Manager's 

own employees for, in the name, and at the expense of the Manager  in an amount of 

not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence with loss payable to 

the Corporation, which Crime Insurance shall not be terminated by either the insurer 

or the Manager unless at least thirty (30) days prior notice of cancellation has been 

delivered by Registered Mail to the Corporations, all members of the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 

Glycol Heating System Committees and, if applicable, to the Corporation's auditors. 

 

 (t) Spending Restrictions  

 

   Where the cost of performing work or services (other than utilities) and/or goods or 

materials to be furnished to the Corporations exceeds the sum of Two Thousand 

Dollars ($2,000), obtain and submit at least three (3) written tenders unless the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees is satisfied with a fewer number, for presentation to the 

Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 

Glycol Heating System Committees and obtain the approval of the Shared Facilities, 

the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees prior to entering into the contract. 

  

 (u) Filing of Returns  

 

   In connection with all contracts to perform work or services entered into by the 

Manager, execute and file necessary documents and do and perform all acts required 

under the laws of any Federal, Provincial, Municipal or other Government body or 

authority, provided, however, that Corporations Tax Returns are to be filed by the 

Corporations' Auditors.  

 

(y) Personal Information 

 

(i) The term "personal information" shall mean all information about an 

identifiable individual as set out in all applicable privacy laws, including but 

not limited to the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents 

Act (Canada) (Personal Information). The Manager shall protect and keep 

confidential all Personal Information about or pertaining to all individuals 

that is disclosed by the Corporation or otherwise obtained by the Manager 

under this Agreement.  During the term of the Agreement, the Manager shall 

collect and use Personal Information only to exercise the rights and perform 

the obligations for which such information was disclosed to the Manager, as 

specifically set forth in or clearly implied by this Agreement. 
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(ii) The Manager may not disclose Personal Information to another party unless 

such disclosure is (i) permitted under this Agreement; (ii) authorized by the 

Corporation, or (iii) required by law, in which case the Manager will provide 

prior notice of such disclosure to the Corporation. 

 

V. LEGAL SERVICES  

 

  The services of the Manager shall not include the provision of legal services of any kind but 

shall include the procuring of such services upon the express instructions of the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees.  

 

VI. MANAGER'S COMPENSATION  

 

The Corporations shall:  

 

(a) pay unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of Article XIV,  a fee of 

Three thousand and Fifty Dollars ($3,050.00) per month from October 1, 2016  to 

September 30, 2017 and a fee of Three thousand One Hundred and Twenty-Five 

Dollars ($3,125.00) per month from October 1, 2017 to September 30, 2018, is 

payable by monthly pre-authorized payment, in advance, on the first day of each and 

every month, free and clear of all costs incurred in the operation of the Common 

Facilities and Facilities therein which are recognized as the Corporations ' 

responsibility to bear (it is understood that such remuneration excludes any Federal 

Goods and Services Tax eligible with respect to management services and related 

fees and does not include any other provincial or federal taxes that are now, or may 

become applicable); 

 

(b) reimburse the Manager promptly for any monies which the Manager may advance 

for the  account of the Corporations, provided that nothing herein contained shall be 

construed to obligate the Manager to make any such advance.  

 

VII. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  

  

Any plans, drawings, specifications and architectural or engineering assistance which may 

be necessary or desirable to enable the Manager to discharge its duties pursuant to this 

Agreement, shall be provided at the expense of the Corporations, provided, however, that 

the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 

Glycol Heating System Committees or its designated representative from time to time shall 

authorize the retaining of any such assistance before any such expense is incurred.  

 

VIII. CO-OPERATION OF THE SHARED FACILITIES, THE PROJECT PARKING UNITS, 

SHARED HEATING PUMP SYSTEM AND SHARED GLYCOL HEATING SYSTEM 

COMMITTEES 

 

The Corporations acknowledge that the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees must cooperate with 

the Manager to the extent required to enable the Manager to perform expeditiously, 

efficiently and economically the management services required under this Agreement and 

must provide such evidence of authority by way of certified resolution or otherwise and 

such specific directions as the Manager may reasonably require.  In particular, the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees may designate, from time to time, the person who, with respect 

to any specific matter, or category of matters, relating to the management of the Common 

Facilities or the affairs of the Corporations, is authorized to represent the Shared Facilities, 

the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees when the Manager wishes to consult with, or obtain the approval of, the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees before proceeding with any work, act or action; or for the 

purpose of giving directions or instructions to, or otherwise dealing with, the Manager; with 

respect to such matter or category of matters.  If such designation is made, the Manager is 

directed not to consult with, obtain approval of, or accept directions or instructions with 

respect to such matter or matters from any other person.   
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IX. INDEMNIFICATION  
 

The Corporations shall, during and after the termination of this Agreement, indemnify and 
save the Manager completely free and harmless from any and all claims, actions, obligations, 
liabilities, costs, expenses and fees arising out of damage or injury to person or property in or 
about or in any way connected with the Common Facilities or incurred by reason of carrying 
out the provisions of this Agreement or acting upon the directions of the Corporations, except 
in the case of default of the Manager in complying with the provisions of this Agreement or 
any negligence, fraud, illegal or dishonest act, or intentional harm on the part of the Manager, 
its employees or agents.  The Manager shall, during and after the termination of this 
Agreement, indemnify and save the Corporations completely free and harmless from any and 
all claims, actions, obligations, liabilities, cost, expenses and fees arising out of the default of 
the Manager in complying with the provisions of this Agreement or any negligence, fraud, 
illegal or dishonest act or intentional harm caused by the Manager, its employees or agents. 

 

X. COMMERCIAL LIABILITY INSURANCE  
 
 (a) The Corporation shall obtain, or authorize the Manager to arrange for, commercial 

general liability insurance on the Common Facilities to a limit of not less than five 
million dollars ($5,000,000) inclusive, under the terms of which: 

 
 (i) the Manager shall be named as an insured together with the Corporation, as 

their interest may appear, in each policy providing protection against any 
claims for personal injury, death, property damage or loss for which either 
the Corporation or the Manager might be held liable as a result of their 
respective obligations; and 

 
 (ii) the insurer undertakes to provide the Manager at least thirty (30) days prior 

written notice of cancellation or of any material change in the provisions of 
any such policy.  The Corporation, upon request, will provide to the 
Manager a certificate of insurance in respect of any such policy.  

 
 (b) The Manager shall, during the term of this Agreement and any extensions or 

renewals thereof, place and maintain at its sole costs and expense in the name of the 
Manager, commercial general liability, showing a limit of not less than five million 
dollars ($5,000,000), which insurance policy shall include coverage for contractual 
liability, non-owned automobile liability, tenant's legal liability, employers' liability 
and employee benefits errors and omissions.  In addition, such policy shall contain a 
severability of interest's clause and a cross-liability clause. 

 
 (c) The Manager shall also place and maintain at it's sole costs and expense in the name 

of the Manager, professional liability (errors and omissions) insurance showing a 
limit of not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000). 

 
 The Manager agrees to provide the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared 

Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees with a certificate of 
insurance prior to the effective date of this Agreement and thereafter annually as evidence 
that it is maintaining such insurance and also to provide the Shared Facilities, the Project 
Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 
Committees  with at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or any 
material changes in the provisions of its insurance policy. 

 

XI. SPENDING AUTHORITY AND DEFICIT FINANCING  
  

The annual budget shall constitute the major control, under which the Manager shall operate, 
and there shall be no substantial deviations there from, excluding such expenses as insurance 
and other expenses not within the control of the Manager, except as may be approved in 
writing by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 
Shared Glycol Heating System Committees.  No expenses may be incurred for commitments 
made by the Manager in the name of the Corporations in connection with the maintenance and 
operation of the Common Facilities in excess of the amounts allocated to the various 
classifications of expense in the approved budget; provided, however, that emergency repairs 
involving manifest danger to life or property, or immediately necessary for the preservation 
and safety of the Common Facilities, or for the safety of the Owners and residents, or required 
to avoid the suspension of any necessary services to the Common Facilities, may be made by 
the Manager irrespective of the cost limitation imposed by this paragraph.  Notwithstanding 
this authority as to emergency repairs, the Manager shall, if at all possible, confer immediately 
with the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 
Glycol Heating System Committees regarding every such expenditure.  



 - 12 - 

 

  

Unless the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees has specifically authorized such procedure, 

under no circumstances shall the Manager advance funds to the Corporations on a temporary 

loan basis whether interest is charged to the Corporations or not in the event of a cash 

deficit occurring in the Corporations' current account.  The Manager shall notify the Shared 

Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol 

Heating System Committees of any anticipated cash deficit and the Shared Facilities, the 

Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees shall take immediate steps to obtain the necessary funds to cover any such 

deficit in accordance with the Easement and Cost Sharing  Agreement.  

 

XII. FIDUCIARY RELATIONSHIPS  

 

The Manager (if required) shall not engage any parent or subsidiary Company or any 

persons, firm or Company associated, affiliated or otherwise connected with the Manager 

(hereinafter called the "Affiliate") to perform any work or services for the Corporations 

within the scope of the Manager's duties under the provisions of this Agreement, without 

being in breach of any fiduciary relationship with the Corporations, subject, however, to the 

prior approval of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees in each and any such instance and 

subject further to the provisions of Article XI hereof.  

 

XIII. RELATIONS WITH OWNERS AND RESIDENTS  

 

  (a) The Manager shall promptly and courteously deal with all reasonable requests or 

complaints by the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump 

System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, any Owner or resident or 

any mortgagee of a unit relating to the management of the Common Facilities or the 

duties or obligations of the Manager pursuant hereto, and record in writing any such 

requests or complaints and the eventual disposition thereof;  

  

(b) The Manager shall maintain businesslike relations with Owners and residents whose 

service requests relating to the Common Facilities shall be received, considered and 

recorded in systematic fashion in order to show the action taken with respect to each 

request.  Complaints relating to Common Facilities, the maintenance and repair of 

which are the responsibility of the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, shall 

be attended to by the Manager in as prompt and diligent a manner as possible.  

 

XIV. TERMINATION 

 

The Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared 

Glycol Heating System Committees, in accordance with the Easement and Cost Sharing  

Agreement or any two (2) of the Corporations: 

 

 (a) may terminate this Agreement, without cause, with effect as at the last day of a 

calendar month, upon giving to the other party written notice specifying the 

termination date. Such notice shall be given to such other party prior to the 

commencement of the period of two (2) full calendar months ending on the date of 

termination.  Upon expiration of such notice period, the Manager shall surrender to 

the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and 

Shared Glycol Heating System Committees, all contracts, records, files and other 

documents or information which may be pertinent to the continuing operation of the 

Common Facilities and the Corporations shall pay to the Manager any monies due to 

it as of the date of termination;   

 

(b) The parties agree that the term of this Agreement shall not be allowed to lapse 

without notice of termination in writing given by either party to the other not less 

than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement.  Should 

notice of termination not be given sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the term 

of this Agreement, as provided herein, the Agreement shall continue on a month to 

month basis until terminated upon sixty (60) days written notice, as provided herein, 

and the Manager’s fee shall immediately increase by 5% and thereafter 3% per 

annum until negotiated. 
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(c) In addition to the rights of the parties described in paragraph (a), this Agreement 

shall terminate immediately upon the happening of any of the following events:  

 

(i) the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Manager, or upon the Manager taking 

steps to wind up its business voluntarily or otherwise (including but without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing, if the Manager has a petition for a 

receiving order filed against it; if the Manager makes a proposal in 

bankruptcy; if the Manager makes an assignment of its property for the 

benefit of its creditors generally; or if a receiver or a trustee is appointed to 

manage or investigate the affairs of the Manager); or  

 

(ii) the Manager is insubordinate, reckless or grossly negligent in performing its 

duties hereunder; or 

 

(iii)  at the option of the Corporations, the assignment by the Manager of its 

contract with the Corporations or the sale of its business, or control of its 

business without the approval of the Corporations. 

 

 (d) Upon termination of this Agreement and in addition to the Manager 's obligations 

described in paragraph (a) above:  

  

  (i) the Manager shall as soon as possible thereafter and within twenty (20) days 

after the date of effective termination pay over any balance in the 

Corporations' bank account managed by the Manager remaining to the credit 

of the Corporations (less any amounts necessary to satisfy commitments 

properly made by the Manager to others prior to the date of termination), and 

shall as soon as possible thereafter render a final accounting to the 

Corporations; 

 

  (ii) the Manager shall forthwith surrender to the Shared Facilities, the Project 

Parking Units, Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating 

System Committees or to the Shared Facilities, the Project Parking Units, 

Shared Heating Pump System and Shared Glycol Heating System 

Committees's representative designated in writing all the keys to the 

Common Facilities or any part thereof held by the Manager or any of i ts 

employees and all the books and records, other than accounting books and 

records, kept by the Manager in relation to the management of the 

Corporations which are the property of the Corporations, or that are in the 

possession of any employees of the Manager, including, without limitation, 

contracts, files, plans, drawings, specifications, architectural or engineering 

documents, manuals, maintenance and repair logbooks, and correspondence, 

provided, however that the Manager's own files relating to the Corporations 

shall be excluded; 

 

  (iii) all accounting books and records kept by the Manager in relation to the 

Management of the Common Facilities which are the property of the 

Corporations, or that are in the possession of any employees of the Manager, 

will be surrendered within one (1) full calendar month after the termination 

date, or after an audited statement, if required by either party, is presented;  

 

   (iv) the Corporations shall assume the obligations under any and all contracts 

which the Manager has properly made for the purpose of arranging the 

services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement; 

 

  (v) any liability incurred under this Agreement by either party to the other up to 

and including the date of termination of this Agreement or which arises from 

a claim made after such termination with respect to any occurrence prior to 

the termination, as well as all obligations of each party hereto to  the other 

under this Article XIV, shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
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XV. NOTICE  

 

All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be sufficiently given:  

 

(a) to the Corporations, if signed by or on behalf of the party so giving notice 

hereunder, and delivered or mailed by prepaid registered post addressed to each 

Corporation at their respective addresses for service which are designated in their 

respective Declarations or to such other address designated by each Corporation 

from time to time by written notice given to the Manager; 

 

(b) to the Manager, if signed by or on behalf of the party so giving notice hereunder, 

and personally delivered to the Manager at 111 Gordon Baker Road, Suite 700, 

North York, Ontario M2H 3R1, Attention Sandro Zuliani, or at such other address as 

the Manager may from time to time designate by written notice pursuant hereto. 

 

All such notices shall be deemed to have been received on the third business day following 

the date of such mailing or on the date of personal delivery. 

 

XVI. PARTIAL INVALIDITY  

 

  If any portion of this Agreement shall be for any reason declared invalid or unenforceable, 

the validity of any of the remaining portions of this Agreement shall not be thereby affected, 

and such remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect as if this Agreement had 

been executed with such invalid portion eliminated, and it is hereby declared the intention 

of the parties hereto that they would have executed the remaining portion of this Agreement 

without including therein any such portions thereof that might be declared invalid.  

 

XVII. SUCCESSORS AND PERMITTED ASSIGNS  

 

  This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective successors 

and permitted assigns of the parties hereto, provided always that this Agreement may only 

be assigned by the Manager with the express written consent of the Corporations. Such 

consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

XVIII. GENDER AND NUMBER 

 

 Where applicable, or where required by the context, all references herein in the singular 

shall be construed to include the plural and references to masculine shall be construed to 

include the feminine and neuter genders. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto affixed their respective corporate seals, 

attested by the hands of their respective Officers duly authorized in that behalf,  this             day of   

                          , 2016. 

 

 

 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1247 

 

 

 

Per:            

 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation 

 

 

 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1271  

 

 

 

Per:            

 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation 
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1279 

 

 

 

Per:            

 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation 

 

 

 

 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1285 

 

 

 

Per:            

 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation 

 

 

 

 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296 

 

 

 

Per:            

 

I have the authority to bind the Corporation 

 

 

 

 

BROOKFIELD CONDOMINIUM SERVICES LTD. 

 

 

 

Per:            

 

 

 

Per:             

 

We have the authority to bind the Corporation 

 



NAMED INSURED:

ADDITIONAL NAMED ALL REGISTERED UNIT OWNERS FROM TIME TO TIME AND ALL REGISTERED 

INSUREDS: MORTGAGEES FROM TIME TO TIME

PROPERTY INSURED: 7165 & 7167 Yonge Street

Thornhill, Ontario

L3T 0C9 & L3T 0E1

TERM: TO

7122418

PROPERTY: Form:  Comprehensive All Risk Policy

Amount of Insurance:

Deductibles: 50,000.00$            STANDARD

100,000.00$          SEWER BACKUP

250,000.00$          WATER

100,000.00$          FLOOD

100,000.00$          EARTHQUAKE

Company: 15%

24%

10%

10%

11%

20%

Trisura Guarantee Insurance Company 10%

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY:

Wawanesa Limit of Liability:

Novex Excess Limit of Liability

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY:

Wawanesa Limit of Liability:

Novex Excess Limit of Liability

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN INSURANCE:

Limit per Accident:

Company:

Policy Number:

                                   
     

Date:

                  

August 24, 2021 ________________________________

Authorized Representative

Novex Insurance Company

Travelers Canada

Chubb Insurance Company of Canada

RSA Insurance Company of Canada

Tokio Marine Kiln 510

81638409-1677

This document is furnished as a matter of courtesy and only as information of the fact that Policies have been concurrently prepared.

It is not a contract, confers no right upon any person and imposes no liability on the Insuring Companies.

A photocopy of this executed Certificate may be relied upon to the same extent as if it were an original executed certificate.

ATRENS-COUNSEL INSURANCE BROKERS 
Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

Aviva Insurance Company of Canada

                               COMMERCIAL PACKAGE POLICY NO.

$159,990,831.00

Wawanesa Insurance

$5,000,000.00

$10,000,000.00

$5,000,000.00

$10,000,000.00

$159,990,831.00

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

This is to certify that insurance described below has been effected with the Insurer(s) shown,

subject to the terms and conditions of the policy applicable.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

September 17, 2021 September 17, 2022

Your Protection is Our Business

www.atrens-counsel.com



NAMED INSURED:

ADDITIONAL NAMED ALL REGISTERED UNIT OWNERS FROM TIME TO TIME AND ALL REGISTERED 

INSUREDS: MORTGAGEES FROM TIME TO TIME

PROPERTY INSURED: 7161 / 7171 & 7165 / 1767 Yonge Street

Thornhill, Ontario

L3T 0C8

TERM: TO

81735154

PROPERTY: Form:  Comprehensive All Risk Policy

Amount of Insurance:

Deductibles: 10,000.00$            STANDARD

25,000.00$            SEWER BACKUP

25,000.00$            WATER

25,000.00$            FLOOD

100,000.00$          EARTHQUAKE

Company: 50%

10%

20%

20%

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY:

Limit of Liability:

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY:

Limit of Liability:

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN INSURANCE:

Limit per Accident:

Company:

Policy Number:

                                   
     

Date:

                  

August 24, 2021 ________________________________

Authorized Representative

Chubb Insurance Company of Canada

Travelers Canada

RSA Insurance Company of Canada

81638409-1995

This document is furnished as a matter of courtesy and only as information of the fact that Policies have been concurrently prepared.

It is not a contract, confers no right upon any person and imposes no liability on the Insuring Companies.

A photocopy of this executed Certificate may be relied upon to the same extent as if it were an original executed certificate.

ATRENS-COUNSEL INSURANCE BROKERS 
Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

Aviva Insurance Company of Canada

                               COMMERCIAL PACKAGE POLICY NO.

$7,269,691.00

Aviva Insurance Company of Canada

$5,000,000.00

N/A

$7,269,691.00

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

This is to certify that insurance described below has been effected with the Insurer(s) shown,

subject to the terms and conditions of the policy applicable.

2-WAY SHARED FACILITIES FOR YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1271 

AND YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

September 1, 2021 September 1, 2022

Your Protection is Our Business

www.atrens-counsel.com



NAMED INSURED:

ADDITIONAL NAMED ALL REGISTERED UNIT OWNERS FROM TIME TO TIME AND ALL REGISTERED 

INSUREDS: MORTGAGEES FROM TIME TO TIME

PROPERTY INSURED: 7161, 7163, 7165, 7167, 7171, 7181, 7191 Yonge Street

Markham, Ontario

L3T 0C6

TERM: TO

81735152

PROPERTY: Form:  Comprehensive All Risk Policy

Amount of Insurance:

Deductibles: 25,000.00$            STANDARD

25,000.00$            SEWER BACKUP

50,000.00$            WATER

25,000.00$            FLOOD

100,000.00$          EARTHQUAKE

Company: 20%

25%

10%

27%

10%

Trisura Guarantee Insurance Company 8%

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY:

Aviva Limit of Liability:

Novex Excess Limit of Liability:

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY:

Limit of Liability:

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN INSURANCE:

Limit per Accident:

Company:

Policy Number:

                                   
     

Date:

                  

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

This is to certify that insurance described below has been effected with the Insurer(s) shown,

subject to the terms and conditions of the policy applicable.

5 WAY SHARED FACILITIES FOR YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1247, 

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1271, YORK REGION STANDARD 

CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1279, YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION 

NO. 1285 AND YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

September 1, 2021 September 1, 2022

Aviva Insurance Company of Canada

                               COMMERCIAL PACKAGE POLICY NO.

$128,112,449.00

Aviva Insurance Company of Canada

$5,000,000.00

$5,000,000.00

N/A

$128,112,449.00

August 26, 2021 ________________________________

Authorized Representative

RSA Insurance Company of Canada

Chubb Insurance Company of Canada

Wawanesa Insurance

Tokio Marine Kiln 510

81638409-1994

This document is furnished as a matter of courtesy and only as information of the fact that Policies have been concurrently prepared.

It is not a contract, confers no right upon any person and imposes no liability on the Insuring Companies.

A photocopy of this executed Certificate may be relied upon to the same extent as if it were an original executed certificate.

ATRENS-COUNSEL INSURANCE BROKERS 
Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

Your Protection is Our Business

www.atrens-counsel.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Owners of
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296
which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2020, and the statements of revenue and
expenses, operating fund, capital asset fund, reserve fund for major repairs and replacements and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of York
Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1296 as at September 30, 2020 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Condominium Act of Ontario

As at September 30, 2020, the reserve fund for major repairs and replacements was underfunded by $84,072. This
occurred as a result of the corporation using reserve fund monies to fund the operating deficit at September 30, 2020. This
use of reserve fund monies is in contravention of the Condominium Act of Ontario.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the corporation's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the corporation's financial reporting process.

2. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

corporation’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on the corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the corporation to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

March 1, 2021 YalePGC, LLP
Richmond Hill, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2019

ASSETS

OPERATING
  Cash $ 7,743 $ 147,390
  Accounts receivable 

Unit owners 20,365 6,569
Allowance for doubtful accounts (18,047) (6,395)
Other 75 1,299

  Due from Shared Facilities World on Yonge Residential 8,390 2,456
  Prepaid expenses 185,131 151,773

203,657 303,092

RESERVE
  Cash 816,869 702,279
  Investments 1,423,712 1,100,000
  Interest receivable 10,653 8,001

2,251,234 1,810,280

CAPITAL ASSETS (note 5) 475,567 479,800

$ 2,930,458 $ 2,593,172

See accompanying notes. 4.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2019

LIABILITIES

OPERATING
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 307,841 $ 341,077
  Due to World on Yonge Shared Facilities 43,307 2,480
  Due to York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1247 - 2,966

351,148 346,523

RESERVE
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,611 5,949
  Due to World on Yonge Shared Facilities 2,318 -

14,929 5,949

366,077 352,472

FUND BALANCES

OPERATING FUND (DEFICIT) (231,563) (43,431)

CAPITAL ASSET FUND 475,567 479,800

RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 2,320,377 1,804,331

2,564,381 2,240,700

$ 2,930,458 $ 2,593,172

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director

See accompanying notes. 5.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2020 2019
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

REVENUE
  Common element assessments $ 2,868,736 $ 2,868,733 $ 2,868,733
  Less:  Budgeted transfer to reserve fund for

major repairs and replacements (667,249) (667,249) (632,148)
Budgeted transfer to capital asset fund (10,452) - (34,563)

2,191,035 2,201,484 2,202,022
  Other income 13,148 8,818 21,657

2,204,183 2,210,302 2,223,679

EXPENSES - see Schedule
  Service and maintenance contracts 836,316 828,125 826,783
  Repairs and maintenance 121,582 87,503 122,876
  On-site personnel 81,684 93,301 92,117
  Utilities 575,481 657,066 529,506
  General and administration 162,268 193,080 138,332
  Shared Facilities (note 7) 420,372 455,287 416,028
  Special projects (note 10) 6,480 84,072 (2,602)

2,204,183 2,398,434 2,123,040
(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE 
  OVER EXPENSES $ - $ (188,132) $ 100,639

See accompanying notes. 6.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2020 2019
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
  Cleaning $ 130,704 $ 129,837 $ 129,837
  Elevators 102,324 102,326 100,532
  Heating and air conditioning 45,220 45,604 49,163
  Management fees 206,856 206,858 201,967
  Parking rent (note 8) 66,564 68,008 66,184
  Pest control 2,280 2,330 2,250
  Security 246,608 250,758 238,324
  Waste removal and odour control 17,760 13,194 21,109
  Window washing 18,000 9,210 17,417

836,316 828,125 826,783

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
  Cleaning supplies 2,400 855 1,712
  Electrical 8,400 7,808 10,443
  Elevator 5,520 2,503 2,343
  General building 75,662 70,727 82,725
  Hardware and doors 9,600 6,735 10,463
  Plumbing 20,000 (1,125) 15,190

   121,582 87,503 122,876

ON-SITE PERSONNEL
  Relief staff 26,160 30,185 35,896
  Superintendent and employee benefits 55,524 63,116 56,221

81,684 93,301 92,117

UTILITIES
  Gas 156,046 136,873 145,670
  Hydro  116,083 180,105 104,976
  Water 303,352 340,088 278,860

$ 575,481 $ 657,066 $ 529,506

See accompanying notes. 7.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2020 2019
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION
  Audit fees $ 4,800 $ 4,800 $ 4,407
  Insurance 96,000 138,462 81,290
  Legal 10,200 6,822 14,317
  Office and general 42,268 34,707 29,933
  Telephone 9,000 8,289 8,385

$ 162,268 $ 193,080 $ 138,332

See accompanying notes. 8.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2019

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ (43,431) $ 246,779

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (188,132) 100,639

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL ASSET FUND (MORTGAGE PAYDOWN
     AND PURCHASE OF PARKING AND LOCKER UNITS) - (390,849)

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ (231,563) $ (43,431)

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL ASSET FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2019

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 479,800 $ 76,730

BUDGETED TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND - 34,563

TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND (MORTGAGE PAYDOWN
     AND PURCHASE OF PARKING AND LOCKER UNITS) - 390,849

MORTGAGE INTEREST - (15,767)

MORTGAGE DISCHARGE FEES - (1,283)

AMORTIZATION (4,233) (5,292)

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 475,567 $ 479,800

See accompanying notes. 9.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

STATEMENT OF RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2019

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 1,804,331 $ 1,333,946

BUDGETED TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND 667,249 632,148

ENERGY RETROFIT REBATE 27,459 6,049

INTEREST EARNED 41,258 36,718

2,540,297 2,008,861

CHARGES TO THE FUND
  Plumbing repairs and replacements 66,554 1,102
  Garage repairs and topping replacement 40,416 35,783
  Garage door repairs and replacements 32,593 -
  Common area renovations 21,394 -
  Door repairs and replacements 19,425 5,521
  Mechanical repairs and replacements 17,028 10,544
  Electrical repairs and replacements 9,177 -
  Waste removal equipment repairs and replacements 8,687 -
  Security equipment repairs and replacements 4,646 -
  Energy efficiency project and lighting retrofit - 115,063
  Chiller repairs and replacement of parts - 19,149
  Precast repairs - 8,950
  Replacement of lobby tiles - 4,463
  Reserve fund study - 3,955

219,920 204,530

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 2,320,377 $ 1,804,331

See accompanying notes. 10.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AND RESERVE ACTIVITIES
  (Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses $ (188,132) $ 100,639
  Transfer to capital asset fund - (390,849)
  Net change in non-cash working capital
    Accounts receivable (3,572) (3,221)
    Prepaid expenses (33,358) (57,205)
    Due from Shared Facilities World on Yonge Residential (5,934) 10,677
    Due to World on Yonge Shared Facilities 43,145 47,511
    Amortization 4,233 5,293
    Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (26,574) 171,997
    Due to York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1247 (2,966) 2,966

Cash flows (used in) operating and reserve activities (213,158) (112,192)

CASH FLOWS FROM RESERVE AND CAPITAL ASSET FUND ACTIVITIES
  Budgeted transfer from operating fund 667,249 632,148
  Interest earned on reserve funds 41,258 36,718
  Energy retrofit rebate 27,459 6,049
  Charges to reserve fund (219,920) (204,530)
  Capital asset fund (net) (4,233) 403,070

Cash flows provided by reserve and capital asset fund activities 511,813 873,455

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Purchase of investments (323,712) (400,000)
   Mortgages payable - (408,363)

Cash flows (used in) investing and financing activities (323,712) (808,363)

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH RESOURCES (25,057) (47,100)

CASH RESOURCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 849,669 896,769

CASH RESOURCES, END OF YEAR $ 824,612 $ 849,669

Represented by:
  Cash - operating fund $ 7,743 $ 147,390
  Cash - reserve fund 816,869 702,279

$ 824,612 $ 849,669

See accompanying notes. 11.



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 1 OPERATIONS

The corporation was incorporated on September 17, 2015 without share capital under the
Condominium Act of Ontario and is a non-profit organization exempt from taxes under the Income
Tax Act.

The purpose of the corporation is to manage and maintain the common elements (as defined in
the corporation's Declaration and By-laws) and to provide common services for the benefit of the
owners of the 521 residential units of the multi-unit high-rise complex located at 7165 Yonge
Street, Thornhill, Ontario.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations. The significant policies are:

Common elements

The common elements of the corporation are owned proportionately by the unit owners and,
consequently, are not reflected as assets in these financial statements.

Operating fund

The operating fund reports all owners assessments, budgeted allocations of those assessments to
other funds and expenses related to the operation and maintenance of the common elements of
the corporation.

Capital asset fund

The capital asset fund represents the corporation's invested equity in the superintendent's suite,
guest suite, parking unit, locker unit and recycling system. The current year amortization on the
recycling system is accounted for in these statements.

Reserve fund for major repairs and replacements

The corporation, as required by the Condominium Act of Ontario, has established a reserve fund
for financing major repairs and replacements of the common elements. Charges to the fund
require approval by the Board of Directors. Only major repairs and replacements of the common
elements are charged directly to this reserve.

Minor repairs and replacements are charged to repairs and maintenance in the general operations.

12. 



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Owners assessments are recognized as revenue monthly based on the budget distributed to the
owners each year. Interest and other revenues are recognized as revenue of the related fund
when earned.

Contributed services

Directors, committee members and owners volunteer their time to assist in the corporation's
activities. These services materially benefit the corporation, however a reasonable estimate of the
time spent and its fair market value cannot be made and accordingly, these contributed services
are not recognized in the financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations, requires management and directors to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of asset increases and
decreases during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The corporation's financial instruments primarily consist of cash, investments, receivables,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of potential loss caused by fluctuations in fair value of future cash flow
of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates. The corporation is exposed to this
risk through its interest bearing investments. The corporation manages this risk by investing in
fixed-rate securities of short and medium term maturity and plans to hold the securities to maturity.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss should a counter-party in a transaction fail to meet its
obligations. The corporation places its operating and reserve cash and investments with high
quality institutions and believes its exposure is not significant. The corporation's credit risk from
owners' assessments receivable is also not significant given the ability of the corporation to place
a lien on a unit for outstanding fees and limited financial exposure in a multi-unit condominium.

13. 



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the corporation will not be able to meet its obligations as they become
due. The corporation manages this risk by establishing budgets and funding plans and by levying
sufficient owners' assessments to fund its operating expenses, debt payments and necessary
contributions to the reserve and other funds.

NOTE 4 BUDGET

The 2020 budget figures as presented are for information purposes only and are not covered by
the audit report of Yale PGC, LLP dated March 1, 2021.

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital assets of the corporation consist of the superintendent's suite at a cost of $300,000,
the guest suite at a cost of $130,000, parking at a cost of $19,816, locker at a cost of $8,816 and
the recycling system (equipment) at a cost of $51,681. No amortization is taken on the
superintendent's suite, the guest suite, parking and locker as the residual value of these assets
would not be less than the original costs.  Amortization on the recycling system will be provided on
the declining balance basis at an annual rate of 20%.

Accumulated Net Book Value
Cost Amortization 2020 2019

Superintendent's suite $ 300,000 $ - $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Guest suite 130,000 - 130,000 130,000
Parking 19,816 - 19,816 19,816
Locker 8,816 - 8,816 8,816
Recycling system 51,681 34,746 16,935 21,168

$ 510,313 $ 34,746 $ 475,567 $ 479,800

NOTE 6 RESERVE FUND STUDY

The directors of the corporation have used an updated reserve fund study not based on a site visit
from WSP Canada Inc. dated March 1, 2019 and such other information available to them in
evaluating the adequacy of the annual contributions to the reserve fund. The study's plan for
contribution to the reserve fund for 2020 was $667,249 and the plan for expenditures for 2020 was
$28,784. The study projected a reserve fund balance on September 30, 2020 of $2,687,422.

The reserve is evaluated on the basis of expected repair and replacement costs and the life
expectancy of the common elements and assets of the corporation. Such evaluation is based on
numerous assumptions as to future events.

14. 



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 7 SHARED FACILITIES

This corporation, along with the adjacent corporations, has entered into various cost sharing
agreements to form various Shared Facilities.

This corporation, and all adjacent corporations, shall be solely responsible for that proportionate
share of the total costs of operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing and inspecting the exterior
landscaped areas and facilities, pedestrian walkways, pedestrian bridge, garage ramps, green
roofs, outdoor roadways, shared systems and parks in the proportion that the gross floor area of
each of the buildings bears to the total gross floor area in all of the buildings. This corporation's
share of the cost is 28.49%.

This corporation, and all adjacent corporations, shall be solely responsible for that proportionate
share of the total costs of operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing and inspecting the garage in
the proportion that the number of parking units of each of the buildings bears to the total number
of parking units in all of the buildings. This corporation's share of the cost is 21.86%.

This corporation, and three of the adjacent corporations, shall be solely responsible for that
proportionate share of the total costs of operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing and inspecting
the shared elevators in the proportion that the gross floor area of each of these buildings bears to
the total gross floor area in all of these buildings. This corporation's share of the cost is 33.59%.

This corporation, and one of the adjacent corporations, shall be solely responsible for that
proportionate share of the total costs of operating, maintaining, repairing, replacing and inspecting
the shared recreational areas in the proportion that the total number of residential dwelling units in
each of these buildings bears to the total number of residential dwelling units in both of these
buildings. This corporation's share of the cost is 42.32%.

The only charge shown as expenses for the Shared Facilities are as follows:

October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020 $ 435,017
Less: share of surplus from Shared Facilities World on Yonge Residential (8,390)
Add: share of deficit from World on Yonge Shared Facilities 28,660

$ 455,287

15. 



YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 8 COMMITMENTS

The corporation has entered into a commercial parking lease since the registration date of
September 17, 2015 with York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1247 (expiring on
January 23, 2064), York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1279 (expiring on
January 23, 2064) and York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1285 (expiring on
May 4, 2065). During the first year of the term, the rent per parking unit was $60 plus TMI and in
each subsequent year it increases by an amount equal to 3% of the previous year's rent. The
minimum rental obligation for the next five years is as follows:

Year ended September 30, 2021 $ 50,579
Year ended September 30, 2022 52,096
Year ended September 30, 2023 53,659
Year ended September 30, 2024 55,269
Year ended September 30, 2025 56,927

The corporation has entered into a contract with Edgecom Energy for the flood detection system
for a total contract price of $105,090 (including H.S.T.). As at September 30, 2020, $84,072 had
been invoiced for work performed with the remaining contract amount to be invoiced as the work is
completed.

NOTE 9 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2019 figures presented for comparison purposes have been reclassified in order to
conform with the financial statement presentation adopted for 2020.

NOTE 10 SPECIAL PROJECTS

During the year, the corporation charged $84,072 to special projects for the flood detection
system.

NOTE 11 CORONAVIRUS

Events have occurred as a result of the COVID-19 (coronavirus) pandemic that have caused
economic uncertainty. The related financial impact and duration of this disruption cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.

NOTE 12 FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

As at September 30, 2020, the reserve fund for major repairs and replacements was underfunded
by $84,072. This occurred as a result of the corporation using reserve fund monies to fund the
operating deficit at September 30, 2020. This use of reserve fund monies is in contravention of the
Condominium Act of Ontario. This shortfall occurred as a result of a year end adjusting entry to
reallocate non-reserve expenses from the reserve fund to the operating fund.

16. 
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PRE-AUTHORIZED PAYMENT PLAN AUTHORIZATION 
FOR CONDOMINIUM MONTHLY COMMON CHARGES 

 
RE : OWNERS(S) NAME(S) :             

 OWNER(S) ADDRESS :             

                
 

TO :  YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296 (the "Payee") 
 
AND  TO: Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd. (the "Payee's Agent") 
 
AND  TO : Owner(s) Financial Institution or Bank or Trust Company (the "Bank")  

  Name of Financial Institution :              

  Branch Address :              

  City, Province :               

  Branch Transit No.       Account No.        
 

1. THE  UNDERSIGNED  OWNER(S)  AUTHORIZE  the  PAYEE  and the Payee's Agent on the PAYEE'S behalf to debit 

the above account at the above indicated branch of the Bank, in payment of the monthly condominium common charg es 

as may be approved by the  PAYEE  from time to time and attributed to the undersigned Owner(s) of Suite            at 

                           , Toronto, Ontario,  _________. 
 
2. A debit in the amount of $             may be drawn on the account, on the 1st day of each month, beginning the 

month of    , 20___. 
 
3. It is acknowledged and agreed by the undersigned that if there are insufficient funds on deposit in the account at the time t hat the 

debit is made by or on behalf of the PAYEE, the insufficiency shall be deemed by the PAYEE to be non-payment of the common 
charges for the particular month. In addition, the undersigned acknowledges and agrees that if any service fees or charges ar e 
incurred because there are insufficient funds on deposit, such fees or charges shall be paid by the undersigned. 

 
4. The Bank is not required to verify that any debits drawn by or on behalf of the PAYEE are in accordance with this Authorizati on or 

the agreement made between the undersigned and the PAYEE. 
 
5. It is acknowledged that in order to cancel this Authorization the undersigned must provide 14 days prior written notice to the 

PAYEE in care of the Payee's Agent at:  Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd., c/o Accounting Department, 111 Gordon Baker Road, 
Suite 700, North York, Ontario M2H 3R1.  This authorization may be cancelled at any time and cancellation will be effective 14 days 
after such written notice of cancellation is actually received by the Payee's Agent.  

 
6. The right is acknowledged by the undersigned, to full reimbursement of a pre-authorized debit made to the account by the Bank, if 

the right is exercised within 90 days after the item in dispute is posted to the account and any of the following conditions apply: 
(a) the PAYEE was never provided with an Authorization, (b) the debit was not drawn in accordance with the Authorization that was 
provided to the PAYEE,  (c) the Authorization that was provided the PAYEE was revoked in writing, or (d) the debit was posted  to 
the wrong account due to incorrect account information. 

 
7. It is acknowledged by the undersigned that delivery of this Authorization to the PAYEE constitutes delivery by the undersigne d to 

the Bank.  It is warranted by the undersigned that all persons whose signatures are required to sign on  the above account have signed 
this Authorization.  Receipt is acknowledged by the undersigned of a signed copy of this Authorization.  

 
8. The undersigned will notify the PAYEE (in care of the Payee's Agent at the address set out above) promptly in writing if  there is any 

change in the above account information or if this Authorization is to be terminated.  
 
9. For verification purposes, please enclose one of your personal cheques marked  " VOID ".  For an account, all depositors must sign 

if more than one signature is required on a cheque issued against the accountholder.  
 
 
     Owner's Signature :           
Date 
     Owner's Name :            
 
     Owner's Address :          
 
     Owner's Signature :           
Date 
     Owner's Name :            
 
     Owner's Address :           
 
 
NOTE :  For verification purposes, please enclosed one of your personal cheques marked  "VOID".  For an account, all depositors mu st sign if 
more than one signature is required on a cheque issued against the accountholder.   



 

SUMMARY OF LEASE OR RENEWAL 
(clause 83 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act) 

 

 

TO:    YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1296 

 

1. This is to notify you that: 

 

[Strike out whichever is not applicable]: 

a written or oral [strike out whichever is not applicable]: lease/ sublease / assignment of lease 

 

OR 
 

a renewal of a written or oral [strike out whichever is not applicable]: lease / sublease / assignment of 

lease 
 

has been entered into for: 

 

Unit(s)______,  Level(s)_______, [include any parking or storage units that have been leased]. 

 

on the following terms: 

 

Name of Lessee(s) (or sublessee(s)):  _______________________________________________     

 

Telephone number:  _____________________________________________________________ 

 

Fax number (if any):  ____________________________________________________________ 

  

Commencement date: ____________________________________________________________ 

 

Termination date: _______________________________________________________________ 

 

Option(s) to renew: _____________________________________________________________ 

   (set out details) 

 

Rental payments: _______________________________________________________________ 

   (set out amount and when due) 

 

Other information: ______________________________________________________________ 

   (at the option of the owner) 

 

 

 
Please see other side => 

2. I (We) have provided the [strike out whichever is not applicable]: lessee(s) / sublessee(s) / 

assignment with a copy of the declaration, by-laws and rules of the condominium corporation. 

 



3. I (We) acknowledge that, as required by subsection 83 (2) of the Condominium Act, 

1998, I (We) will advise you in writing if the [strike out whichever is not applicable]: lease / sublease / 

assignment of lease is terminated. 

 

Dated this____________ day of _____________________ 

 

 

         

    

        ______________________________ 

        (signature of owner(s)) 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        (print name of owner(s)) 

 

(In the case of a corporation, affix corporate seal or add a statement that the persons signing 

have the authority to bind the corporation). 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        (address) 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        (telephone number) 

 

        ______________________________ 

        (fax number, if any) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please complete and give to the Management Office 
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